
~ 
Dated: 25th May 2022 

To, 
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National Stock Exchange of India Ltd 
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Mumbai - 400 051 

Dear Sir, 

Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 
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Re: Regulation 33 - Audited Financial Results for the year ended 31
st 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015, please find enclosed the Audited Annual Accounts 

(Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company, along with Audited Financial Results, Auditor's 

Report & Form-A of the Company, for the year ended 31st 
March, 2022. 

Thanking you, 

Yours truly 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions limited 

Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-time Director 
Enclosed: a/a 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Usha Martin Education & Solutions Ltd. 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statemenrs of Usha Martin Education & 

Solutions Ltd. ("tbe Company") which comprise the balance sheet as at 3 lst March 2022. and the 

statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity 

and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to 

as "the stand alone financial statements). 

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022, and its profit, changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143( I 0) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered 

Accountants or India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance witJ1 these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We bel ieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the stand alone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in fonning our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Sr. 
No. 

1 

Key Auctit Matter Auditor's Response 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement. Principal Audit Procedures 

presentation and disc losurcs of revenues and We assessed the Company"s process lo 

other related balances in view of adoption of lnd identify the impact of adoption of the new 

AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with revenue accounting standard. 

Customers" (new revenue accounting standard) Our audit approacb consisted testing of the 

design and operating effectiveness of the 

internal controls and substantive testing as 

follows: 

The application of the new revenue accounting • 

standard involves certain key judgements relating 

Evaluated Lhe design of internal controls 
relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard. 

to identification of distinct performance 

obligations, determination of transaction price of 

the identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to measure 

revenue recognized over a period. Additionally, 

new revenue accounting standard contains 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts, and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal control, 
relating to idenli fication of the distinct 
performance obligations and 
determination of transaction price. We 
carried out a combination of procedures 
involving enquiry and observation, re­
performance and inspection of evidence in 
respect of operation of these controls. 

disclosures which involve collation of 

information in respect of disaggregated revenue 

and periods over which Lhe remaining • Tested the relevant information 
technology systems' access and change 
managemenl controls relating to contracts 
and related information used in recording 
and disclosing revenue in accordance with 
the new revenue accounting standard. 

performance obligations will be satisued 

subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts and performed the fo l lowing 
procedures: 

• Read. analyzed and identified the 
distinct performance obligations m 
Lhese contracts. 

• Compared these performance 
obl igations with that identified and 
recorded by the Company. /4) f', 

/io~~o' 
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2. Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations Principal Audit Procedures 
in respect of fixed price contracts involves 
critical estimates 

Our audit approach was a combination of test 
of internal controls and substantive 
procedures which included the fo llowing: 

Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine 
revenues and liability for onerous obligations. 
This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it 
requires consideration of progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred ti 11 date ru,d efforts required to • 
complete the remaining contract performance 
obi igations. 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to recording of efforts incurred 
and estimation of efforts required to 
complete the performance obligations. 

Refer Notes l ( c.l) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements. • Tested the access and application controls 

pertaining to time recording, allocation 
and budgeting systems which prevents 
unauthorized changes to recording of 
efforts incurred. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
through inspection of evidence of 
performance of these controls, tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
controls relating to efforts incurred and 
estimated. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
performed a retrospective review of 
efforts incurred with estimated efforts to 
identify significant variations and verify 
whether those variations have been 
considered m estimating the remaining 
efforts to complete the contract. 

• Reviewed a sample of contracts with 
unbilled revenues to identify possible 
delays 1n achieving milestones, which 
require change 111 estimated efforts to 
complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 

• Performed analytical procedures and test 
of details for reasonableness of incurred 
and estimated efforts. 
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3. 

4. 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions & Principal Audit Procedures 
Recoverability of advance tax. 

The Company has material uncertain tax positions 
including matters under dispute which involves 
significant judgment to detennine the possible 
outcome of these disputes. 

Refer Notes I U) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Obtained details of completed tax assessments 

and demands for the year ended March 31, 

2022 from management. Involvement of our 

internal experts hardly found anything to 

challenge the management's underlying 

assumptions in estimating the tax provision 

and recoverability and advance tax. 

Valuation of investments and impairn1ent thereof: Held at cost. No impairment provision is 

(a) Non-Current investments in Body Corporate; called for in terms of latest balance sheet of 

investee 

Responsibilities of Management's and T hose Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
F inancial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated jn section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 201 J ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone finandal 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in 

equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. Thjs responsibility 

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of Lhe financial statement that 

give a true and fair v iew and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement. wliether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material mLsstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in tbe 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on t.be 

basis of t hese financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or tbe 

override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 43(3)(i) of the Companies 

Act. 2013. we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 

adequate internal financial controls syslem in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use or the going concern basis of accounting 

and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty ex..ists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability Lo continue as a 

going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor"s report to the related disclosures in tbe financial statements or. if such 

disclosures are i_nadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overalJ presentation, structure and content of U1e financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether Lhe financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and Lo communicate with Lhem all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements o f the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circwnstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regula tory Requirements 

I . As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order. 2016 ('the Order') issued by the 

Central Government oflndia in terms of Section 143(ii) of the Act. we give in the Annexure-2 a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order. 

2 . As required by Section 143(3) ofl ndian Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the infom,ation and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appeai-s from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, tbe Statement of Profit and Loss. and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 

with by Lhis Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Srnndards specified under Section 133 of /\ct, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 

on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director. 

(f) We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ( fFCOFR) of 

the company as on 31 st March. 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 

financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 

May 25, 2022 as per Annexure-1 expressed an unmodiiied report. 

(g) Pursuant lo Section- 197(16) of Companies Act. 2013. it is hereby confirmed that 

remuneration paid to whole Lime Dire-etor has been very much within the limit laid down 

under this section. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 1 I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company does not have any pending Litigations whicb would impact its 

financial position 

11. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note N1l. to the fmancial 

statements; [or the Company did not have any long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

111. The management representation concerning clause (e)(i) relating to no fund have 

been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds by tbe company to or in any other 

person(s) or entity(ies) and clause (e )(ii) relating to no funds have been received 

by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), other than as disclosed in the 

notes to the accounts, is considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances. 

iv. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year under review. 

UD IN : ~ .S-l( J !1 ~ A 3 0 T \ t\ 2.& '=,"-i3 
For G. BASU & CO. 
Chertered Accountanta 

R. No. 301174E 
Place Kolkata 

Date May 25, 2022 
~ 

MAITRA 
Partner 
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Annexure-1 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Usha Martin Education 
& Solutions Limited, ("the Company") as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appl icable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountil'lg princi les. A 

<o\)-$U & C', 
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company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place 

Date 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered AceountanlS 

R. No. 301174E h--:-
Kolkata TRA 

Partner 
May 25,1022 M. No.054728 
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A NNEXURE - 2 

RE: USHA MARTIN ED U CA Tl ON & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Tms [S REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH l OF Oll R REPORT OF EVEN DATE 

i) The body corporate has fixed assets during lhe year. ft has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of foc.ed assets. Physical 
Verification has not been con.ducted during the year under audit. The company has not 
revalued its property, plant and equjpment during the year. 

ii) The company is a service company. Accordingly it does not hold any physical inventories. 
Thus paragraph 3(ii) or the Order is not applicable. 

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerslups or other parties covered in the Register maint.ained under section 189 
of the Act, during the year. Accordingly. the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

iv) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued 
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules. 2015 with regard 
to the deposits accepred from the public are not applicable. Hence, paragraph 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

v) The clause selating to maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 20 l3 is not applicable to the company. Hence, paragraph 3(vi) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

vi) (a) Accordingly to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account. and records, the Company has been generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-Tax, 
Goods and Service. Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise. Value Added Tax, Cess and any 
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Accordingly to the information and 
explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in 
arrears as at 31 st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date on 
when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, tbere are no dues of income 
tax. sales tax. service tax. duty of customs. duty of excise. value added tax outstanding 
on account of any dispute. 

vii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the 
transactions that the company has entered into, are duly reflected in the books of account. 

viii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial 
institution. bank, government or dues to debenture holders (there is no debenture 
holders). 

(b) As per infom1ation and explanation given to us, the company has not ap 
term loan during the year. 
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ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not raised moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments. The company has not 
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year under review. 
Accordingly, paragraph J(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on 
the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi) ln our Opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company. transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where appLicable and details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

xiii) The company has an internal audjt system commensuraie with the size and nature of its 
business and the management maintains a system of compliance fo r qualified opinion, if 
any. 

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company. the company bas not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and therefore , para (xv) of the 
order does not apply. 

xv) Other clauses of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

Place 

Date 

Kolkata 

May 25, 2022 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Aecountanta 

R. No. 12!4 • ~ 

TAM MAJTRA 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 

Statutory Audit Report for the year ended 31.03.2022 of Usha Martin Education 6 Solutions Ltd. 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS lTO. 

CIN: l31300WB1997PLC085210 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Partlculars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant-& Equipment 
Intangible Assets 

Financial Assets 

(i) Investment 

Other Non.Current Assets 

"Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Fln~ncial Asoets 

(i) Tr.ide Receivables 

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Other Current Assets 

Total current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 

Equity 

fqulty Share capital 

Other Equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 

liabilities 
Non.Current Uabllltle. 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Prov,sions 

Total Non-Current Llabllltles 

Current liabilities 
Finanoal llabilibes 

(I) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade and Other Payables 

(iii) Othi,rs 

Other Current Llabilit,es 
Provisions 

Total Current liabllllles 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting-Policies 

The accompanying notM arc integral part of the Balance Sneet. 
This is the Balance Shee1 referred to In our report of even date 

For G.Basu & Company 
Firm RegiStratron Number· 301 l74E 
Chitrtered Accountants 

Gautam Mallra 
Partner 
Membership No. 054728 

Place: Kolkata 

Date : 25th May 2022 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountanta 

Ar:1ib~ 
GA~~ 

Partner 
M. No. 054728 

Note No. 

2 

3 
4 

s 
6 
7 

a 
9 

10(1) 
l0liil 

ll(i) 
11(11) 
111111) 

12 

13 

20 

Asal 
March 31, 2022 

Rs. 

1,24,34,939 
847 

16,05,00,000 
8,41,L44 

17,37,77,030 

12.39,670 
4,55,882 

81,63,525 

98,59,077 

18,36,36,107 

2,64,15,811 
10,88,90,566 

U ,53,06,377 

l,26,87,339 

1,26,87 ,339 

2. 70,65,000 
25,39,705 
59,81,224 

4 l,130 
15,332 

3,56,42,391 

4,83,29,73D 

18,36,36,107 

Asal 
March 31, 2021 

Rs. 

1,24,85,190 
847 

16.05,00,000 
7,£4,3U 

17,37,50,348 

1.6.00.0.10 
1,44,762 

87,89,463 

1,05,34,235 

18,42,84,S83 

2.64,15,811 
10,83,99,554 

13,41$,15,365 

U6,37,378 

1,26,37,378 

2.70,65,000 
29,34,591 
65,63,38) 

2.55,198 
13,670 

3,68,31,840 

4,94,69,218 

18,42,84,583 

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors 

G,CM.--r·~ N•W'~,yi,... 
Gangotrl Guha Vlnay Kumar Gupta 

Whole~Ttmo Director 

OIN: OOS74665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION ANO SOLUTIONS lTO. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLCD8S21D 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

REVENUES 
Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Employee Benefits Expense 
Flnance Cost 

Depreciation and Amort1zat1on 

Operating and Admlmstrat1ve Expenses 

Tot.ii Expenses 

Proflt / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 

Exceptional Items 

Profit/ (Loss] before Tax 
Tax Expense: 

(I) Current Ta• 

(II) Previous Years 

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation 

Profit/ (Loss) per equity share 
[Nominal Value per share · Rs. I] 
-Basic and Diluted In Rupees 

Note No. 

14 
15 

16 
l7 
18 

19 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 20 

The-accompanying notes are integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

This Is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred t-0 In our report of even date. 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Rs. 

78,37,390 
7,77,364 

86,14,154 

27,35,443 
16,06,903 

3,976 

37,77,420 

81,23,742 

4,91,012 

4,91,012 

4,91,012. 

0.02 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Rs. 

58,95.050 

8,16,807 

67,11,852 

27,85,889 
16,91,SSS 

1,32,451 
19,07,273 

6S,17,168 

1,94,684 

1,94,684 

1,94,684 

0.01 

For G.8asu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Firm Regfstration Number; 301174E 
Cnartl'red Accountant,; 

Gautam Maltra 

Partner 
Membership No. 0S4TI8 

Place Kolkata 

Date . 25th May 2022 

For G_ BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accounlllnts 

.No. 117 

c;~r~·~ 
Gangotrl Guha 

01rector 

"'' ()..(. 0." "' 
Vlnay Kumar-~ 

Whol~ Time Director 

DIN: 0057,!J;65 

adhyay I ~Tr 
Ch,ef Financial Of!,ce, 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONSHD. 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the period ended Mar 31, 2022 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2021 
Changes In the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares Issued 
Balance at the March 31, 2022 

8. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings/ Capital 
(Accumulated Contribution by 

Deficit) Holding Company 

Balance as at Aprll l, 2021 

Share Premium Account 1,20,249 
Retained Earnings; 

Opening Balance 10,82,79,305 -
(a) Proflt/(Loss) for the year 4,91,012 
(bl Other comprehensive Income for the year 
Total comprehensive profit for the year (a+b) 4,91,012 
Closing Balance 10,87,70,317 

Share based payment expenses . 
Re-payment towards Share based payment expenses . 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 10,88,90,566 . 

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2020 
Changes In the Equity Share capital during the year on ac:count of shares issued 

Balance at the March 31, 2021 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at Aprll 1, 2020 
Share Premium Account 

Retained Earnings: 
Opening Balance 
(a) Proflt/(Loss) for the year 
(b) Other comprehensive LosS for the year 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (a+b) 

Closing Balance 

Additional Capital Contribution 
Share based payment e~penses 
Re-payment towards Share ba5ed payment expenses 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 

For G.Basu & Company 

Firm Registratlon Number· 3011741: 
Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maitra 
Partner 
Membership No. 054728 

Retained Earnings/ Capital 

(Accumulated Contribution by 

Deficit) Holding Company 

1,20,249 

10,80,84,621 

1,94,684 
-

1,94,684 

10,82,79,305 . 
. -

. 

. -
10,83,99,554 . 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

CT·C~k 
Ganglltrl Guha 

tv. "N"' .q..,._. n. 
Vlnay Kumar Gl!'pta 

Director Whole-Time Director 

Place; Kolkata 

DIN : 01666863A I G ~ DIN: 00574665 

For G. BASU & co. ~ efoyopadh~ c1;;1t~ ~~';"'"'"' Offim 
Date . 25th May 2022 

~ ITRA 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 

Rs 
2,64,15,811 

-

2,64,15,811 

Rs 

Total 

1,20,249 

10,82, 79,305 
4,91,012 

4,91,012 
10,87,70,317 

. 
-

10,88,90,566 

Rs 
2,64,15,811 

-
2,64,15,811 

Rs 
Total 

1,20,249 

10,80,84,621 
1,94,684 

1,94,684 

10,82, 79,305 

. 

10,83,99,S54 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

1 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Ks. 

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount 

As at Additions Disposal/ As at As at Additions Disposal/ As at Asat Asat 

Assets 
April 1, 2021 During the year Adjustments March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 During the year Adjustments March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

During the year During the year 

Buildings l ,3.4,n,826 - - l,34,72,826 12,96,073 - - 12,96,073 1,21,76,753 1,21, 76,753 

Plant and Equipment 25,72,031 - 5,19,949 20,52,082 24,94,040 3,741 4,63,153 20,34,628 17,454 77,991 

Vehicles 15,36,725 - 4,26,930 11,09,795 14,59, 875 . 4,05,584 10,54,291 55,504 76,850 

Furnit.ure and Rxture 24,13,523 - 3,79,162 20,34,361 22,92,813 . 3,79,111 19,13,702 1,20,659 1,20,710 

Office Equipment 6,35,668 - 32,651 6,03,017 6,02,782 235 64,569 5,38,448 64,569 32,886 

Total [A] 2,06,30,773 - 13,58,692 1,92, 72,081 81,45,583 3,976 13,12, 417 68,37,142 1,24,34,939 1,24,85,190 

Previous Year 2,06,30,773 . . 2,06,30,773 80,13,132 1,32,451 . 81,45,583 1,24,85,190 

2 Intangible Assets 
Rs - ·-· 

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation Net Carrying Amount 

Assets As at Additions Disposal/ As at Asal Additions Disposal/ As at Asal Asat 

April 1, 2021 During the year Adjustments March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 During the year Adjustments March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 

During the year During the year 

Computer So~wa re 52,582 . - 52,582 51,735 . - 51,735 847 847 

Total 52,582 - . 52,582 51,735 . - 51,735 847 847 

Previous Year 52,SB2 . 52,582 Sl,735 . - 51,735 847 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes armexed to and forming part o1 the Flnancial Statements 

3 Financial Assets 
Investment : Non-Current 
Long-Term Trade and Unquoted Investments 1n Equ1ry Instruments 

(Valued at Cost) 

Usha Communications Technology Limited, BVI 
Redtech Netork India Private Limited 

Usha Martin EdUCQt1on Private Limited 

Aggregate amount of UnQuoted Investments 

4 Other Non-Current Assets 

Gratuity (Funded w,th UC of India ) 

S Trade Recelvables 

Unsecured, Con•idcred Good 

Outstanding tor a period exceedmg six months 

less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Considered Good 
Outstanding for a period less than six months 

From Related Parties 

(u) 

(bl 

Total (a)+ (b) 

Asat 
March 31,2022 

Rs. 

5,50,00,000 
10,00,00,000 

55,00,000 

16,0S,00,000 

!f.41,244 

8,41,244 

19.53,932 

12,94,262 

6,59,670 

5,80,000 

S,80,000 

12,39,670 

Asat 
March 31,2021 

Rs. 

5,50,00,000 
10,00,00,000 

55,00,000 

16,05,00,000 

7,64,311 

7,64,311 

19,76,386 

12,55,016 

7,21,370 

8,78,640 

8,78,640 

16,00,010 

Details of Trad@ Receivable Outstanding 
Name of customer 

Percentage of Total Outstanding 

Punjab TechnlCal University 

Others 

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on hand 

Balances w ith Banks 

-In current accounts 

41.62", 
58.38% 

100.00% 

5.214 

4,50,668 

4,SS,8&2 

1225% 
6775% 

100.00% 

2,327 

1,42,435 

1,44,762 

There are no repatriat ion restriction\ with regard to c.ash and ..i•h equivalents~ at the end of the_reporting period and prior periods. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS lTO. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Flnanclal Statements 

7 Othe r Current Assets 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advances 

Balances w ith Government Authorities 

Advance Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions) 
Se curity Deposits 
Advance/Loans to Employees 

8 Equity Share Capital 
a) Authorized Share Capital 

200,000,000 (As at March 31, 2021 : 200,000,000) equity shares of RS'. 1 each 

1.000,000 10.75% Cumularlve Redeemable 
Preference ShareJ of Rs 50/- each 
(As 31 March 3.1, 2021 : 1,000,000) 10. 75% Cumulative 
Preference Shares of Rs. 50/· each 

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital 

26,415,811 Equity Shares of Re. 1/· eath 
IAs at March 31,2021· 26,415,811 equiry shares of Rs 1 each) 

Asal 
March 31.2022 

Rs. 

28,866 
5,77S 

2,47,502 
74,16,382 

4,50,000 

15,000 

81,63,SZS 

Z0.00.00,000 

s,00.00.000 

25,00,00,000 

2,64,15,811 

2,64,15,811 

c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outsrandmg at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

At the beginning of the year 
Issued during the year 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

Note: 

Nos. 
1,64,15,BU 

2,64, 15,811 

As at March 31., ZOU 
Rs. 

2,64, 15,811 

2,64,15,811 

As at 

March 31,2021 
Rs. 

37,460 

3,13,152 
72,36,424 
11,75,000 

27,427 

87,89,463 

20,00,00,000 

5,00.00.000 

25,00,00.000 

2,64,15,811 

2,64,15,811 

Nos, 
2,64,15,811 

2,64,15,811 

Paid up eapital Includes 26,414,411 Equity Shares Issued as fully puld-up In terms ol the Scheme of Demerger approved by the 
1-ton'bl~ Calcutta High Court 

d) There has been no movement In number of shares oulStandlng at the beginning and at the end of reporting period. 

As at March 31, 2021 
Rs, 

2,64, 15,Sll 

2,64,15,811 

e) The Company has only one class of Issued share I.e. ordinary equity shares having par value of Rs 1 pe( share. Each holder of ordinary sh~rei is entitled 10. o 

vote per share and equal nght for dividend. NO preference and/or restrictions on dlstribution of dividend and repayment ol capital Is attached to th<! above sh 

f) Shares In the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% as on balance sheet dal!! 

No. of Equity Shares 

Name of the Shareholders as on 31.03.2022 

UMIL Shares & Stock BroklnR Services Ltd 30,75 127 

Peterhouse Investments limited 7,63,291 

Usha Breco ltd 33.77,627 

Pra1eev Investments Limited 20,57 610 

9 Other Equity 
Retained Earnings/ (Accumul.rted Deficit) (Refer note 'a' below'! 

Reserves & Surplus 
Securities Premium Account 

a. Retained Earnings/ (Accumulated Deflcit) 

Opening Balance 

Net (loss)/ Surplus /or the year 

Closing Balance 

% of Equity Shares as 

on 3 1.03.2022 

1188 
2.89 

13.05 

7.95 

10,87,70,317 

10,87,70,317 

l,20,249 

1,20,249 

10,82, 79,305 
4,91,012 

10187,70,317 

10,88,90,566 -

NO, of Equity Shares % o f Equity Shares a s 
a s on 31.03.2021 on 31.03.2021 

30,75,U7 11.88 
17,63,291 6.68 
33,TT,627 13.05 

20,57.610 7.95 

10,82, 79,30S 

10,82,79,305 

1,20,249 

1,20,249 

10,80,84,621-
1,94,684 

10,82,7920S 

10,83,99,554 



10 Non-Current Uabilitles 
Financial Uabllltles 

(I) Borrowings 
(ii) Provisions 

Non-Current portion of Provisions 
Provision for lmplrement of Assets 
Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 
leave entltotlement 

11 Current Uabllitles 
Flnanclal Uablllties- Current 

(I) Borrowings 

Unsecured 

From Related Party 
Inter-corporate Deposit 

(ii) Trade and other Payables 
Trade Payables 
Employee Related Uabllitoes 
Accrued Expenses 

(iii) Others 
Capital Creditors 
Interest on Unsecured loan- Related Parties 
Dues payable ro related parnes 

U Other Current liabilities 

Statutory Dues Payable 

13 Current pordon of Provisjons 

Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 
leave entititlement 

USHA MARTIN tDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Note$ annexed to and forming part of the Flnanclal Statements 

Asat 
March 31,2022 

Rs, 

1,21, 76,753 

3,90,071 

1,20,513 

1,26,87,339 

2,70,65,000 

2, 70,65,000 

12,82,255 
90,915 

11,66,535 

25,39,705 

32,136 
31.65.248 
27,83,840 

S9,81,224 

41,130 

41,130 

11,807 
3,525 

15",332 

As at 
March 31,2021 

Rs. 

l,21,76,753 

3.45.419 
J,15,206 

1,26,37,378 

2.70,65.000 

2,70,65,000 

15,23,424 
2.2.0,742 

11,90.425 

29,34,591 

32,136 
33,91.646 

31,39,599 

65,63,381 

2,55,198 

2,55,198 

10,338 
3,332 

13,670 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to.ind forming part of the Flnanclal Statements 

. 14 f!evenue from Operations 

Income from Business 

15 Other Income 

Income Tax Refund 

Income on Planned Assers (Gratuity) 
Other Non-Operating Income 
[TDX deducted at Source Rs. 3,U7/-, Previous year Rs. 3,600/-) 
Liabilities no longer required wrltten back 
Profit on Fixed Assets sold/scrapped 

16 Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 

17 Finance Cost 
Rank Charges 
Other Borrowing-Cost 

Others 

18 Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and .Equipment 

19 Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Travelllng and conveyance 
Communication 
Malnten3nce expeMes 
Rent (Including Lease Rent) 
Insurance charges 
Computer Consumables 
Professional and Consultancy charges 
Legal ~nd,Secreterial 
Printing and Stationery expenses 
Director Meeting fees 
Payment to Auditors (Refer note 'a' bi,low) 
Rates and Taxes 
Forelgn Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net) 
B~d Debts/Sundry Balances written oft (Net) 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

a . Payment to Auditots 
Statutory Auditors 

Statutory Audir fees 
Tax Audit fees 

For the Vear Ended 
March 31,2022 

Rs. 

78,37,390 

78,37,390 

1,684 

56,569 
l,SS,837 

5,39,549 
LJ,715 

7,77,364 

25.60.468 
1,74,975 

27,35,443 

34,400 
.1.5,72,S03 

16,06,903 

3,976 

3,976 

2,16,935 
1,18,499 

37,170 
40,680 
90,239 

4,138 

U,97,950 
9,39,183 

Zl,116 

60.000 
1,25,000 

7,500 
94,200 

7,25,000 

l,04,8W 

37,77,42.0 

1,00,000 
25,000 

l , 25,000 

For the Vear Ended 

March 31,2021 

Rs • 

58,95,050 

58,95,0S0 

17,721 

1,06.207 
2,40,000 

4,52,874 

8,16,802 

1.6,40;797 
1,4S,092 

27,85,889 

23,581 
16,67,284 

689 

16,91,S5S 

1,12,451 

1,32,451 

1,60.580 
21,236 
51,567 
43,730 
95,310 

3,09,960 
8,86,932 

23,960 
70,000 

l ,ZS,000 

2,500 
63,825 

52,673 

19,07,273 

1,00,000 
25,000 

1,2S,000 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: l31300WB1997PLC085210 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended Marth 31, 2022 

Partltulars 
A, Cash Flow generated/ (used) in Operating Activities 

Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Depredat ion and Amortization 
Interest Income 

Liabilities no longer required written back 

Bad Debts/ Sundry balances written off-(net) 
Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets Sold / Discarded 
Finance Costs 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes In Working Capital : 

• (Decrease)/ Increase In Trade Payables 
• (Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions 
• (Decrease)/fncrease in Other Financial Uablhtles 
• (Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current Uabllltles 
• (Decrease)/lncrease in Trade Recelvables 
• Decrease/(lncrease) In Other Non-Current Financial Assets 

• Decrease/(lncrease) In Other Assets 
Cash genel'ilted from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activitles 

B. Cash Flow used in Investing Activities 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow used In Financing Activities 
Proceeds/(Repayments) of Loan from Banks 
Finance Costs 
Net Cash used In Financing Activities 

Net increase /decrease In Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

• Amount ,s below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

The accompanying notes are Integral part of the Cash Flow Statements. 

Rs. Rs. 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

4,91,012 1.94,684 

3,976 1,32,451 
(58,253) (1,23,928) 

(5,39,549) (4,52,874) 
7,25,000 

(23,725) 
16,06,903 16,91,555 
2.2,05,364 14,41,888 

1,44,663 (4,63,509) 
Sl,623 6,835 

(3,55,759) (4,15,936) 
(2,14,068) 21,166 
3,60,340 (8,71,140) 

3,963 (2,67,907) 
21,96,126 (S,48,603) 

{l ,79,958) 3,76,660 
20,16,168 (1,71,943) 

58,253 1,23,928 
1,28,253 1,23,928 

(18,33,301) {l,49,320) 
(18,33,301) (1,49,320) 

3,11,120 {1,97,334) 

1,44, 762 3,42,096 
4,55,882 l,44,762 
3,11,120 (1,97,334) 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

5,214 2,327 

4,50,668 1,42,435 

4,55,882 1,44,762 

For G.Basu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 

Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maltra 
Partner 
Membership No. 054728 

Place: Kolkata 
Dat e : 25th May 2022 

For G. BASU & CO 
Chartered Accountant; 

R. No. 30117 E 

'~ 
G 

cM\r 
Gangotri Guha 
Director 
DIN: 01666863 

IV• "N° • ~ h 

Vinav Kum~:1ta 
Whole-rime Director 
DIN: 00574665 

op~aYr ' 
Chle IO . 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATlON & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Account_.. for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

SIGNIFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) Basis of Preparation of financial Statements 

The Company generally follows mercantile system of accounting unless otherwise stated and recognizes income and 
expenditure on accrual basis except those with signiticanl uncertainties. The accounts have been prepared in 
accordance with historical cost convention method. 

b) Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Fixed assets comprising both Langible and intangible items are stated at cost less depreciation. The Company 
capitalizes aJI costs relating lo acquisition of fixed assets. Cost of Sot1ware expected to be used on long-term basis is 
capitalized. 

Depreciation (including amortization) on fixed assets has been provided on the basis of the useful life of assets as 
provided in schedule II to the Companies Act, 1013 (the --Act") 

Depreciation on additions and deletions to iixed assets is provided 011 a pro-rata basis. 

e) Investments 

Long-term investments are valued at their acquisition cost. Any decline in the value of the said investment. other 
than a temporary decline. is recognized and charged to the Statement of Profit amt Loss, 

Cu1Tent Investments arc stated at lower or cost or fair value. 

d) Revenue Recognitio11 

Revenue from training is recognized over the period of ihe course program. 

e) Use or estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities a11d 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and 
actions, actual result~ could differ from these estimates. 

f) Current and Non-Current assets and liabilities 

An asset or liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria 

(i) It is expected to be realized / seuled. or is intended for sale or consumption, in the Company's 
nom1al operating cycle: 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded: 

(iii) lt is expected to be realized / due to be scukd with.in twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to set1le a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting da1c or 

(v) The Company does not have an unconditional right 10 defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date 



USI IA MARTIN EDUCA flON & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: S ignificant Accoun ting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 

g) Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the ratel:> prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the year-end artJ restated at tbe exchange rates prevailing on that date. 
Gain/ loss arising out of exchange fluc tuation on settlement or such restatement are accounted for in the Statement of 
P rofit and Loss, except to the extent these relate to acquisition of fixed assets. in which case these are adjusted to the 
carrying va I ue of the related Ii xed assets. 

h) Leases 

Operat ing Leases- Rentals are expen~cd with reference to lease terms and other considerations. 

i) Employee Benefits 

{i) Contribution to employee provident fund is charged to revenue on a monrhly basis 

(ii) Liability ror retiral. gratuity and un-availed eamed leave is provided for based on an independent actuarial 
valuation report as per the requirements of Accounting Standard 15 (revised} on "Employee Benefits"', 

(iii) Employee benefits of short-term nature are recognited as expense as and when it accrues. Long tem1 
employee benefits (e.g. long-service leave) and post employments benefits (e.g. gratuity). both funded 
and unfunded, are recognized as expense based on actuarial valuation. 

j) Taxation 

Current Tax in respect of taxable income of the year is provided for based on applicable tax rates and laws. 
Deferred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. on timing 
differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and 
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and i::, measured using tax rates and laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets / liabilities a.re reviewed at 
each 13alance Sheet date. 

k) Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing cost attributable to U1e acqui~ition and contribution of qualifying assets are added LO tht: c.o~t up to 
date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the 
period in which U1ese are incurred. 

I) Contingencies 

Contingencies, which can be reasonably ascertained, are provided for if. in the opinion of the Company. there is 
a probability U1at !he future outcome may be materially adverse to the Company. 

m) Prior Period and Extra Ordinary Items and Changes in Accounting Policies 

Prior Period and Extra Ordinary Items and Changes in Accounting Policies having material impact on the 
financial affairs of U1e Company are disclosed. 

2 



USHA MARTlN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIM ITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Policies ant.I Notes on Accounts for the year ended 3 l st March, 2022 

2) Foreign Currency Earnings & Outgo: 

a) Expenditure in foreign currency: 

I Listing Fees 
2021-22 ( Rs.) 2020-21 ens.) 

b) Earnings in foreign currency: 

2021-22 (Rs.) 2020-21 (Rs.) 
Management Training. Educational Consultancy. 5,637,390 5,895,050 
Market Research and Delivery of modules for H & D 
Business Studies and Computine Studies 

3) Related Party Disclosures Pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 issued by The lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

i) Related Parties 
Name Relationship 

Usha Martin Education Private Limited Subsidiary 

Redtech Network lndja Private Limited Substantial Interest in voting power of the entity 

Jhawnr Impact Ventures PrivaLc Limited - do. 

Jhawar Venture Management Private Limited -do -

Usha Breco Limited - do -

Usha Martin Vennires Limited - do -

Vi nay Kumar Gupta ( Whole Time Director) Key Managerial Personnel 

lndrajit Bandyopadhyay (Chief Financial Officer) Key Managerial Personnel 

Rituparna Das (Company Secretary) Key Managerial Pt:rsonnel ( Released w.t!.f. 31/0 1/2022) 

3 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Polic.ies and Notes on Accounis for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
ii) Particulars ofTransactions during the year ended 31 Sl March, 20n 

Particulars Subsidiaries and Key Management 
Associates Personnel 

(Rs.) (Rs.) 
Rent Paid (including lease Rent) 40,680 -

43.730 -
Key Managerial Personnel's Remuneration . 2,515,450 

. 2,587.820 
lnterest Paid 1,572,503 . 

1.667,284 . 
Reimbursement of Expenses received 420,987 -

257.936 -
Consultancy Income 2.200.000 -

. -
Unsecured Loans: 
Taken during the year . -
Repaid during rhe year . -

Balances outstandin2 al the year end 32,434.088 -
lnvescmem in Equity and Preference Shares Refer Note No. 3 

to Accounts 
-do-

Remunerution to Key Manar,erial Personnel ·~ include renumeralion of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and 
Whole-Time Direclor 

Figures are inclusive ofGST, wherever applicable and figures in nomial font relate to previous year 

4) Computation ofEaming Per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted) 

{I) Basir 
(a) ( i) Number of Equity Shares at the 

beginning of tht: year 

(i i) Number of Equity Shares at the end of 
the year 

(iu) Weighted average number of Equity 
Shares outstanding during the year 

(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share- Re. 

(b) Profit/(Loss) after UL-.: attributable to 
Equity Shareholders- Rs. 
Net Profil/(Loss) after Taxation 

Basic Earnings per Share [(b)/(a)(iii)]- Re. 

For the year ended 
3 1st March, 2022 

26,4 15,8 11 

26,415,811 

26AIS,8 1 I 

491 ,012 

0.02 

For the )'ear ended 
3 I st March, 202 I 

26.41 5.811 

26.41 5,811 

26.415,811 

194,684 

0.01 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st Marcb, 2022 

(II) Diluted 
(a) Diluted Potential Equity Shares 
(b) Diluted Earning~ per Share n<b)/l(a)(iii)l- Re. 0.02 0.01 

5) Managerial Remuneration paid/payable 
2021-22 2020-21 

(a) Key Managerial Personnel's Remuneration: Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 
Salary 830,098 853,98J 
Contribution to Provident Fund 99,612 102,478 
Contribution to Gratuity and 39,928 41,076 
Superannuation 

Other Benefits (actual and/or esrimated) 1,545,8 12 2,515,450 1,590,285 2,587,820 

(b) Other Directors 
Directors' Sitting Fees 60,000 70.000 

2,575,-150 2,657,820 

6) The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward losses available for set off under the Income- tax 
Act. 1961 . However, in view of inability to assess future taxable income, the extent of net deferred tax assets which 
may be adjusted in tbe subsequem years, is not -ascertainable with virtual certainty al this stage and accordingly the 
same has not been recognized in the accounts on prudent basis. 

7) The Company has no amounts due to s:upp)jcr.s under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act. 
2006 (MSMED) as at J 1.03.2022. The disclosure as required under the said Act as under: 

a) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act Nil 

b) Interest due to suppliers as above Nil 

C) Any payment made to suppliers beyond appointed date (under Section 16 of the Act) Nil 

d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act Nil 

e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as al 31.032022 Nil 

f) Interest remaining due and payable as per Section 23 of the Act Nil 

5 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS UMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March. 2022 
8) Defined Benefit Plans / Long Tenn Compensated Absences - as per Actuarial Valuations as on March 31 . 2022 and 

recof,rnized in tbe financial statements in respect of Employee Bendit Schemes. 
. R Amount 111 uoees 

Graruity Leave Encashment 
Funded Unfunded 

I Components Emplover Expense 
I Current Service Cost 34,870 3,776 

34.392 9.457 

2 interest Cost (28, 190) 8,179 
(16,079) 8.462 

--
3 Expected Return on Plan Assets - -

4 Cunailment Cost I (Credit) - -
- -

5 Settlement Cost I (Credit) - -
- -

6 Past Service Cost - -
- -

7 Actuarial Losses I (Gains) - (6,455) 
- ( I 1.235) 

8 Total expense recognized in the S tatement of Profit & Loss 6,680 5,500 
8.313 6.684 

Gratuity Leave Encashrnent 
F1111detl Unfunded 

II Actuarial Returns for the period ended March, 2022 - -

'" Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2022 
I Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 408.554 ( II 8,53R) 

395, ]41 ( 128.218) 

2 Fair Value on Plan Assets - -

- -

3 Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] - -
- -

4 Expense recognized in Income Statement 6.680 s.soo 
8.313 6.684 

5 Expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income ( 12,490) -
(21.726) -

6 Employer Contribution 
25,000 -

16.364 -
7 Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet 

439,364 ( 124,038) 
408,554 ( 1 18.538) 

6 



USl-lA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Not 20 s· ·r. e : 1e:ni ,cant A ccountme: Pr . o ac,es an dN fi d3 otes on Accounts or the year ende 1st March, 
IV Change in Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) during the year 

V 

ended March 3 1, 2022 

I Present Value of DBO at the Beginning of Period 

2 Current Service Cost 

3 Interest Cosl 

4 Curtailment Cost / (Credit) 

5 Settlement Cost I (Credit) 

6 Plan Amendments 

7 Acquisitions 

8 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 

9 Benefits Paid 

10 Present Value of DBO at the End of Period 

Change in fair Value of Assets during lhe ye11r ended March 31, 
2022 

I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Plan Assets at the Beginning of Period 

Investment Income 

Return on Plan Assets 

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) 

Actual Company Contribution 

Benefits Paid 

Present Value of DBO at the End of Period 

& 

* - - ,,. 
\ . - \ 

- ., 
r r 

' .... 

Gratuity 
Funded 

355,757 
339.242 

34,870 
34,392 

2-i,547 
22,390 

-
-

-
-

-
-

. 

. 

(13.294) 
(40,267) 

-
-

40 1,880 
355.757 

Gratuity 
Funded 

764,31 I 
734.383 

52,737 
48A69 

(804) 
( 18,541) 

-
-

25,000 
-

-
-

841,244 
764,31 I 

202 2 
Leave Encashment 

Unfunded 

118,538 
128,218 

3,776 
9,457 

8,179 
8.462 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(6,455) 
{11,235) 

-
16,364 

124,038 
118.538 

Leave Encashment 
Unfunded 

-
-
. 
-

-
-

-
. 

-
16.364 

-
(16,364) 

-
-
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Not e 20: Sie:nificant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts fo r the year ended 3Jst March. 2022 
VT Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate (%) I 7.00% I 7.00% 
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuations take accotmi of' inflation, seniority. 
oromotion and other relevant factors such as suoolv and demand factors in the employment market. 

Figures in normal fon1 relate 10 previous year 

9) Promoters Shareholdings: 

Individuals 

SI. 
Name o f the S hareho lders 

No. 

I Basant Kumar Jhawar 

2 Prashant Jhawar 

3 Susmita Jhawar 

4 Stuti Raghav Agarwalla 

5 Brii Kishore Jhawar 

6 Shanti Devi Jhawar 

7 /\nuoama Jhawar 

8 Akshay Gocnka 

9 Bihari Lal SanthaJia 
Total 

lmlian Bodies Corporate 

SI. 
Name of the Shareholders 

No. 

Umil Share and Stock Broking 
I Services Ltd. 

2 Usha Breco Limited 

3 Praicev Investments Limited 

4 Usha Martin Ventures Limited 

Peterhouse Investments India 
5 Limited 

Tot.al 

foreii n Bodies Coroorate 
SI. 

Name of the S hareholders 
No. 

I Peterhouse Investments Limited 
Total 

No. o f rully paid up Shareholding as a % of % changes 
equity shares held total no. of s hares du ring 2021 -22 

l.58A62 0.61 Nil 

1.34.220 0.52 Nil 

4,736 0.02 Nil 

666 - Nil 

2.973 0.01 Nil 

35.065 0.14 Nil 

14,316 0.06 Nil 

4,878 0.02 Nil 

200 - Nil 
3,55,516 1.38 

No. of fully paid up Shureholding as u % of % changes 
equ.ity share!. held total no. of shares durin2 2021-22 

30.75, 127 11.88 Nil 

33.77,627 13.05 Nil 

20.57.610 7.95 Nil 

7.51,517 2.84 Increase 2.79% 

J.18,697 1.23 Increase I .23% 

95,80,578 36.95 

No. o f fully paid up Shareholding as a % or % changes 
equity shares held total no. of i.hares durinl? 2021-22 

7.63.291 2.89 Decrease 3.73% 
7,63,291 2.89 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Age-wise Trade payables: 

(Rs.) 

SI. Less than More than 
No. Particulars I vear 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total 

i) MSME - - - - -
ii) Others 1,05,203 - - 11.77.052 12,82,255 
iii) Disputed under MSM E - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues- Others - . - - -

Total 1,05,203 - - I 1,77,052 l2;82,255 

II ) Age-wise Trade Receivables: 

(Rs.) 

SI. Less than 6 months- More than 
No. Party 6 months I year l -2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
i) Considered good 5,80.000 - - . 6,59,670 12,39,670 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
ii) Considered doubtful - - . - . -

Disputed Trade Receivables -
iii) Considered good - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables -
iv) Considered doubtful - - - . - -

Total 5,80,000 - - - 6,59,670 12,39,670 

12) Financial Ratios 

Financial Ratios: 2021-22 2020-21 

Current Ratio 0.26 0.25 

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.20 0.10 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.29 0.22 

Return on Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio 0.06 0.05 

Net Profit Ratio 0.06 0.03 

Return on Capital Employed 0.01 0.01 

13) Balances of Sundry Debtors. Sundry Creditors and Loans and Advances (Dr. & Cr.) are subject lo confirmruion 
from t11e respective panies. 

J4) Previous year figure:. have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. 
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USH/\ MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: ignificant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31 st March, 2022 

15) The investments in Usha Martin Education Private Limited (subsidiary company). Redtech Network India Private 
Limited (associate company) and Usha Communication Technology Limited. British Virgin Island (other company) 
have been evaluated by lhe management and no provision for impairment is considered necessary in respect of these 
investments. 

(Gautam Maitra) 
Partner 
Membership No. 054728 

For and on behalf of 
G.Basu & Co. 
Chanered Accountants 
Finn Registration No. 301 l 74E 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated: 25th May 2022 

CO>M-~~ 
Gang~ri Guha 
Director 
DIN: 01666863 

N , 'W •.(j-fn 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole- time Director 
DIN: 00574665 

~ .dXr 
Chief Financial Officer 

~~:,;.-.....:,a," 
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TELEPHONE : 2212-6253, 2212-8016 
FAX: 00-91-33-2212 7476 
WEBSITE : www.gbsuuan.dcompany.org 
~-MAIL: 1.lahlri@gbasu.ht 

G.BASU & Co. 
CUARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH 
KOL KA TA - 700 072 

TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTlN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LlMITED 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of USHA MARTIN 

EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED and its subsidiary. which comprises the Balance Sheet as 

at 31si March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, tbe Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 

and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash £lows 

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules. 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities. selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies, making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design. 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express our opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 

audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143( I 0) 

of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance abou1 whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 

material mis~tatement. 

c:,m~SU&C'q 
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G. BASU & Co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

J, CHOWRJNGHEE APPROACH 
KOLKATA -700 072 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures 

in the consolidated .financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material m isstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. ln making tbose risk assessments. lhe auditor considers internal financial 

control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of lhe accounting 

estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presenlation of the 

consolidated financial statements. 

Opinion 

ln our opinion and to tbe best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generaLiy accepted 

in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 3 I ~1 March, 2022 and its Profit and its 

cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(l0) of the Companies Act, 20J3. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibi lities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the stand a lone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

<!J~-~SU&cq 
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Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit M atter 

Accuracy or recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosures of revenues and 

other related balances in view of adoption of Ind-

Auditor's Response 

Principal Audit P1·occdures 

We assessed the Company's process to 

identify the impact of adoption of the new 

AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with revenue accounting standard. 

Customers'' (new revenue accounting standard) Our audit approach consisted testing of the 

design and operating effectiveness of the 

internal controls and substantive testing as 

follows: 

The application or the new revenue accounting • 

standard involves certain key judgements relating 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard. 

to identification of distinct performance 

obligations. determination of transaction price of 

the identified perfonnance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to measure 

revenue recognized over a period. Additionally. 

new revenue accounting standard contains 

disclosures which involves collation of 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts, and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal control, 
relating to identification or the distinct 
performance obligations and 
determination of transaction price. We 
carried out a combination of procedures 
involving enquiry and observation. re­
performance and inspection of evid•ence in 
respect of operation of these controls. information in respect of disaggregated revenue 

and periods over which the remaining • Tested the relevant infom1ation 
technology systems· access and change 
management controls relating to contracts 
and related information used in recording 
and disclosing revenue in accordance with 
the new revenue accounting standard. 

performance obligations will be 

subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

satisfied 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts and performed the following 
procedures: 

• Read. analyzed and identified the 
distinct performance obligations in 
these contracts. 

• Compared these performance 
obi igations with that identified and 
recorded by the Company. 

• Considered the terms of the contracts 
to determine the transaction price 
including any variable consideration 
to veri f the transaction rice used to 

Statutory Audit Report for the year ended 31.03.2022 of Usha Martin Education 6 Solutions ltd. (Consolidated) 
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compute revenue and to test the basis 
of estimation of the variable 
consideration. 

• Samples m respect of revenue 
recorded for time and material 
contracts were tested using a 
combination of approved time sheets 
including customer acceptances. 
subsequt:nl invoicing and historical 
trend of collections and disputes. 

• fn respect of samples relating to fixed 
price contracts, progress towards 
satisfaction of performance obligation 
used to compute recorded revenue was 
verified with actual and estimated 
efforts from the time recording and 
budgeting systems. We also tested the 
access and change management 
controls relating to these systems. 

• Sample of revenues disaggregated by 
type and service offerings was tested 
with the performance obligations 
specified in the underlying contracts. 

• Performed analytical procedures for 
reasonableness of revenues disclosed 
by type and service offerings. 

• We reviewed the collation of 
information and the logic or the repo.rt 
generated from tbc budgeting system 
used to prepare the disclosure relating 
to the periods over which the 
remammg perfomiance obligations 
will be satisfied subsequent lo the 
balance sheet date. 
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2. Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations Principal Audit Procedures 
in respect of fixed price contracts involves 
critical estimates 

Our audit approach was a combination of test 
or internal controls and substantive 
procedures which included the following: 

Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine 
revenues and liability for onerous obligations. 
This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it 
requires consideration of progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred till date and efforts required to • 
complete the remaining contract performance 
obligations. 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to recording of efforts incurred 
and estimation of efforts required to 
complete the performance obligations. 

Refer Notes l(d) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements. • Tested the access and application controls 

pertaining to time recording, allocation 
and budgeting systems whi_eh prevents 
unauthorized changes to recording of 
efforts incurred. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
through inspection of evidence of 
performance of these controls. tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
controls relating to efforts incurred and 
estimated. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
performed a retrospt.:ctive review of 
efforts incurred with estimated efforts lo 

identify significant variations and verify 
whether those variations have been 
considered in estimating the remaining 
efforts to complete tbe contract. 

• Reviewed a sample of contracts with 
unbilled revenues to identify possible 
delays in achieving milestones. which 
require change in estimated efforts to 
complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 

• Performed analytical procedures and test 
of details for reasonableness of incutTed 
and estimated efforts. 
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3. 

4. 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions & Principal Audit Procedures 
Recoverability of advance tax. 

The Company has material uncertain tax positions 
including matters under dispute which involves 
significant judgment to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes. 

Obtained details of completed tax assessments 

and demands for the year ended March 3 I, 

2020 from management. Involvement or our 

Refer Notes I U) to lhe Standalone Financial internal experts hafd ly found anything lo 

Statements challenge the management's underlying 

Valuation of investments and impainnent thereof: 

(a) Non Current Investments in Body Corporate 

assumptions in estimating the tax provision 

and recoverability and advance tax. 

Held at cost. No impairment provision is 

called for in terms of latest balance sheet of 

investee 

Report on Othe1· .Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements. 

(b) 1n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. and the 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. ~~SU 
(? 

*--qr~-~ 

~1: ---~ 
~ti CJ 
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(e) On the basis or the written representations received from the directors of the holding 

company as on 31 st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding 

company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in 

India, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2022 from being appointed as a 

dfrector in tenns of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and its subsidiary incorporated in lndia and the operating effectiveness of such 

control. refer to our separate report in Annexure. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 oftbe Companies (Audits and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations gjven to us : 

i) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India does not have any pending 

I itigations which would impact its -financial position. 

ii) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in Lndia did not have any long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material for 

reasonable losses. 

iii) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India did not declare or pay any 

dividend during the year. 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accouni.nt, 

Place: Kolkata 

Date : May 25, 2022 ~l: 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 
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Repon on lhe Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 or the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act''). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHA MARTIN 

EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED ("the Company") as on 31 st March, 2022 in conjunction 

with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date . . 
Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considedng 

the essential components or internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (lCAl). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operation effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business. including adherence to company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 

2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of 

Internal financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

ur audi t involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

ncial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

ncial controls over fu1ancial reporting included obtaining on understanding of internal financial 
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controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on U1e auditor's judgement, including lhe assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, i.n reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of lhe company are being 

made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Owing to tbc inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to lhe risk tbat the internal 

financial control over financial repo11ing may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at 31 51 March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company over Financial Reportjng issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of lndia. For G. BASU & CO. 

Place : Kolkata 

Date May 25, 2022 

Charttttd Acoountants 

UTAM MAITRA 
Partner 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Partkulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

Intangible Assets 

Financial Assets 
(I) Investment 

Other Non-Current Assets. 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets· 

Financial Assets 
(I) Trade Receivables 

(II) Ca~h and Cash Equivalents 

Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Uablllties 

Non-Current Uabllitles 
Financial llabilltles 

Borrowings 
Provisions 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current llabllltles 
Flnanclal Uabllitles 

(I) Borrowings 

(ti) Trade and Other Payables 
(111) Others 

Other Current llabllltles 
Provisions 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL UABIUTIES 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Pollcles 

The accompanying notes are Integral pan. or the Balance Sheet 

This is the Balance Sheet reierred to In our report of even di3te, 

For G.Basu & Company 

Ffrrn Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maltra 
Partner 

Membership No, 054728 

Place: Kolkata 

Date : 25th May 2022 

FOf G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountanta 

R. No. 301174E --~ 

Note No. 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 
7 

8 

9 

lO(il 

1001) 

ll(I) 
ll(il) 
ll(iii) 

12_ 

13 

20 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

Rs 

1,24,34,939 
847 

15,50,00,000 
8,41,244 

16,82,77,030 

12,39,670 
4,95,867 

1,62,50, 741 

1,79,86,278 

18,62,&3,308 

2,64,15,811 
11,41,82,411 

14,05,98,222 

l,26,87,339 

1,26,87,339 

2,70,65,000 
26.57,215 
31,97,3S4 

42,814 
15,332 

3,29,77,745 

4,56,65,084 

18,62,63,308 

Asal 

March 31, 2021 
Rs 

1,24,8S,190 
847 

15,50,00,000 
/,64,311 

16,82,50,348 

16,00,010 
1,61,891 

1,64,89,240 

1,82,51,141 

18,6S,01,489 

2,64,15,SU 
11,35,77,407 

13,99,93,218 

1,26,37,378 

1,26,37,378 

2, 70,65,000 
31,11,083 
34,23,782 

2,56,358 
13,670 

3,38, 10,ag.3 

4,65,08,271 

18,6.5,01,489 

For and on behalt or the Board of Directors 

Gangotrl Guha Vlnay Kumar Gupta: 
Director Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 01666863 OIN; 00574665 

~41:::::~ 
Chief Financial Officer 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION AND SOLUTION LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars Note No. 

REVENUES 
Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Employee Benefits Expense 

Finance Cost 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 
Exceptional It ems 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense· 
(i) Current Tax 

(ii) Previous Year 

Profit /(Loss) after Taxation 

Profit/ Loss per equity share 

[Nominal Value per share : Rs. lJ 
-Basic and Diluted in Rupees 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
19 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 20 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

This is the Statement of Profi t and Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

For G.Basu & Company 

Flrm Registrat ion Number: 301174-E 

Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maitra 
Partner 

Membership No. 054728 

Place: Kolkata 

Date : 25th May 2022 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

'7~~~[~.1m.~ 
~::!;RA 

Partner 
M. No. 0S4728 

Year Ended Year EndE 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 20 

Rs. Rs. 

78,37,390 58,95,0~ 

12,29,224 11,66,9L 

90,66,614 71,61,95 

29,16,530 29,98,S! 
16,08,334- 16,92,BJ 

3,976 1,32,4! 
38,94,769 20,66,2€ 

84,23,609 68,90, 1; 

6,43,005 2,71,SE 

6,43,005 2,71,SE 

38,000 20,0( 

6,05,005 2,51,SE 

0.02 0 .( 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Gangotri Guha 
Director 

DIN: 01666863 

'V. ""' . .q "'v ... 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-Time Directo 

DIN:00574665 

~ Jlt~:r.:b 
Chief Financial Officer 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTION LTD. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 

A, Equity Share C3pltal 

Rs. 
Balance at the April 1, 2021 2,64, 15,811 
Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued . 
Balance at the March 31, 2022 2,64,15,811 

8 . Other Equity 

Rs 
Particular$ Retained Capital Total 

Eunlngs/ Contribution by 
(Accumulated Holding Company 

Deficit! 
Balance as at April 1, 2021 

Share Premium Account 1,20,249 . l,20,249 
Retained Earnings 
Opening Balance 11,34,57,157 U,34,57,157 
(a) Profh/(Loss) for the year 6,05,005 6,05,005 
(bl Other comprehensive income for the year . 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (a+b) 6,05,005 6,05,005 
Closing Balance U,40,62,162 11,40,62,162 
Additional Capital Contribution . 
Share based payment expenses . . 

Re-payment towards Share based payment expenses . . 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 11,41,82,411 11,41,82,411 

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March ll, 2021 
A. Equity Share capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2020 

Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued 
Balance at the March 31, 2021 

8. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2020 
Share Premium Account 

Retained Earnings 
Op~ning Balance 
(a) Profrt/(Loss) Tor the year 
(b) Other comprehensive Loss for the vear 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (a+b) 
Closing Balance 
Additional Capital Contribution 
Share ba~d payment expenses 
Re-payment towards Share based payment expensl'~ 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

For G.Basu & Company 
Flrm Registration Number: 301174[ 
Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maitra 
Partner 
Membership No 054728 

Place: Kolkata 
Date : 25th May 2022 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants tn ~ 
Gld;AM MAITRA 

Partner 
M. No. 054728 

Rs. 

2,64,15,811. 
. 

2,64.15,811. 

Retained Capital Total 
Earnings/ Contribution by 

(Accumulated Holding Company 
Deficit! 

1,20,249 l,20,249 

11,32,05,296 . 11,32,05,296 
2,51,861 2,51,861 

. 
C . 

2,51,861 . 2,51,861 
11,34,57,157 U,34,57,157 

- . 

. . 
ll,3S,n,407 11,35,77,407 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Gangotri Guha Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Director Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 01666863 DIN: 00574665 

~~, .. i~ . 
Chief Flnanc,al Officer 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

l Property, Plant and Equipment 
Rs. 

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount 

Assets As at Additions Disposal/ Asat Aut Additions Disposal/ Asat Asat Asat 

Aprill, 2021 During the Adjustments Mar 31, 2022 April 1. 2021 During the Adjustments Mar 31, Mar 31, 2022 Aprill,2021 

year During the year year During the year 2022 

Buildings 1,34,72,826 - - 1,34, 72,826 12,96.073 . 12,96,073 J ,21,76,753 1,21, 76,753 

Plant and Equiprnent 25,72,031 - 5,19,949 20,52,082 24,94,040 3,741 4,63,153 20,34,628 17,454 77,991 

Vehicles 15,36,725 . 4,26,930 11,09,795 14,59,875 - 4,05,584 10,54,291 55,504 76,850 

Furniture and Fixture 24,13,523 . 3,79,162 20,34,361 22,92,813 . 3,79,lll 19,13,702 1,20,659 1,20,710 

Office Equipment 6,35,668 - 32,651 6,03,017 6,02,782. 235 64,569 5,38,448 64,569 32,886 

Total [Al 2,06,30,773 - 13,58,692 1,92,72,081 81,45,583 3,976 13,12,417 68,37,142 1,24,34,939 1,24,85,190 

Previous Vear 2,06,30,773 . 2,06,30,773 80,13,132 1,32,451 . 81,4S,583 1,24,85,190 

2 Intangible Assets 
Rs 

---'-
Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation Net Carrying Amount ,___ 

Disposal/ Disposal/ As at Additions Asat As at Additions As at As at .~ at 

Assets 
April 1, 2021 During the Adjustments Mar 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 During the Adjustments Mar 31, Mar 31, 2022 April l , 2021 

year During the year year During the year 2022 

Computer Software 52,582 - . 52,582 51,735 . . 51,735 847 847 

Total 52,582 . . 52,582 51,735 . . 51,735 847 847 

Previous Year 52,582 . . 52,582 51,735 . . 51,735 847 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes anneud to and formmg part o f the Consond,ted Financial Statements 

3 Financial Assets 

fl) lnvesi:ment : Non-Current 

Long-Term Trade and Ur,quot,d lnvr•tmen!!i In Fqulty lnstrumenu 
(Valu~d al Cost) 

U,h~ Communication, Technology llmoted, 8Vi 

Red tech Netorl( India Private Limited 

4 Other Non-Current Asseu 

Gratuity (Funded with l IC of India) 

5 Trade Receivables 
Unsecured, Cnnsldered GO<ld 
Oumandlng for a period exceeding than s,x months 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Considered Good 
Outrtaridlngfo1 a period I= than six month, 
From Related Pao tie, 

ta) 

(b) 

Total (a) + (b) 

Asat 
M;Jrch 31, 2022 

R$ 

5,50.00,000 
.10,00,00,000 

15,50,00,000 

8,41,244 

8,41,244 

19,53,932 

12,94,26< 

6,59,670 

5,80,000 

5,80,DOQ 

12,39,670 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

11$ 

5,50,00,000 
10,00,00.000 

15,50,00,000 

7,64,3ll 

7,64,3.11 

19,76,386 

ll, 55,016 

7, 21,370 

8,78,640 

8,78,640 

16,00,010 

Details of Trade l\eceivable Outstanding 
Name of Customer 

Percentage of Tot.II Outstanding 

Punjab rerhni~al University 
Others 

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Ca5h on hand 

Balances with B•nks 

-ln Lurrt!'11t accounu 

4162% 
58.38% 

100.00% 

7,707 

4,88,160 

4.95,867 

There are no repatnatlon restriction~ w,th regard to ca;h and ca$h equovalems as at the end of the reporting period 
and prior p~rlods. 

70.79% 

29.21% 

100.00% 

3.340 

1,58,551 

1,61,891 



7 Other Current Asset• 

lntercorporate Deposits (Unsecured I 
Advance!. to Supplier> 
Prepaid E~penses 
Balance with Excise, Customs and Sales Tax Authorlt1e\ 

Advance Payment ofia~es !Net of ProvisioM) 

Security Deposits 
Advance/lonns to Employee., 

Interest Receivable 

8 Equity Share Capital 
a) Authorized Share Capital 

200,000.000 I A\.!i at March 31, 20ll 200,000,000) equity sh•<es ot Rs 1 each 

1.000,000 10 75% Cumulauve Redeemable 
Preterence Shares ot Rs 50/· each 
IAs at March 31, 2021 1,000,000) 10. 75'll> C.umula,lve Preference .Snar~s 01 R~. 50/· 
each 

bl luued, Subscribed and Paid up Share capital 

26.415,811 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 

(A~ at March 31,2021: 26,415,811 equity >harr, of~•. 1 ead1) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

Rs 

50,00,000 
5,775 

28,86& 
7,31,262 

83,90,282 
4,50,000 

15,000 
16.29,556 

l,62,S0,741 

20.00,00,000 

5,00,00,000 

25,00,00,000 

2,64,15,Sll 

2,64,15,8.11 

cl Roconc,liation ol t~e Equ,tv Share> uut<,tandin8 at the begmn,ng and ,11 the end ol the report1nH ve.ar 

Asal 
March 31, 2011 

Rs 

50,00,000 

37.460 
8,16,293 

82,08,503 
11.75.000 

27.427 

12.2~.557 

l,64,89,240 

,0.00,00,000 

5.00.00.000 

25,00,00,000 

2,64,15,811 

2,64,15,811 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

At the beginning of the year 
lssur.d during the year 

Outstand,ng at the end of th, year 

Note 

Nos. Rs. 
2,64,lS,811 

2,64,15,811 

2.64, 15,SJ 1 

2,64,15,811 

Nos. 
2,64.15.811 

2,Q'I, 15,811 

Paid up capital Includes 26,414,411 Equ11Y Share, lssu~d as lullv paid-up,,, \~rms of the Schcmi, of Demerger approv~d b\' the 

Hon'ble ultutta High Court 

d) There has been no movement In number of shares outstanding at the beginning ,1r1d a\ !he end oJ reporting period 

e) The Company has only one class of Issued shuces I.e. ordinary eou1\y shares having par value ot Rs. 1 per ,hare. Each holder of 

ordinary •hares is rnt11led u, onr vote per sh•re and equal nght for dJv1dend. No preference and/or ,est11ct1ons on d1Strlbut1on 

of dlv,dend and repayment of caµltal is att.JthPd to the above share~ 

f) Share. in the Company held by each sh~reholrier holdlPg more th.in 5% as on balartce Sheet date 

Name of the Shareholder> No, of Equity % of Equity Share< No. or Equity Shares 

Shares as on •• 0~ 31.03.2022 as on 31.03.2021 
31.03.2022 

I 
I 

UMIL Shares & St!lck Broking Serv,ces Ltd 30,75,127 11.88 30,75,127 

Puterhou~e lnve~tmentS Limited I 7,63,291 2.89 17,!il 291 

Usha Breco ltd 33,77,677 1305 33,77,627 

Praj~e• lnvru.1me11ts Limited 20,57.610 7.95 20,57.610 

Rs. 
2.64.15.811 

2,64,lS,Sll 

% ol Equity Shares 
as on 31.03.2021 

ll.88 

6 6R 

1305 

7 9S 



9 Other Equity 
Retaln~d Earnings/ (Accumulated Deficit) jRef!:r r,ot,· a· hclow'l 

Reserves & Sul'!)tus 
Secum,es Pt em1um Account 

a Retained Earnings/ (Accumulated Deficit) 
Opening Balance 

Net (loss)/ Surplus for the year 

Clo,ing Balance 

10 Non-C1Jrrent UabllltiP5 

Fln;,ncial Lrablllties 
(1) ~,rowings 
(II) ProvlslOM 

Non-Current por,ion of Provi•lons 
Provl,Jon for lmpirement v1 Asset> 
Emplnyee Bcr1,:oht~ 

Gratuity 
Le~ve ent,tltlement 

11 Current Uabllltles 

Financial liabilities- Current 
(I) Borrowinn 

Unsecured 

From Related Party 
Inter-Corporate Deposit 

(II) Trade and other Payable. 
Trade P~yable, 
Employ~e Related Uabllltie, 
Accrued E•pen,.,, 

(Iii) Others 
Capital Creditor, 

Interest on Unsecured Loan- Related Partl~s 

12 Other Current liabilltiel 
Statutory Dues Payabl~ 

13 Current portion of Provisions 
Ernplo~eP Benefits 

Gratuity 
Le-ave entititlemenr 

<;,U & C 
0 
. * 

·~ \~ t'1 - --

' '/ 

Asal 

March 31, 2022 
Rs 

11.40,62.163 

11.40,62,163 

1.20.2aq 

1,20,249 

l l,34,57,157 

6 ,05,005 

11,40,62,163 

11, 41,82,412 

l..21.76.753 

3,90,073 

l ,2C,513 

1,26,87,339 

2, 70,65,000 

2,70,65,000 

13,12,255 
90,915 

12.54,045 

26,57,215 

32,136 

31,65,248 

31,97,384 

42,814 

42,814 

lJ ,807 

3.515 

15,332 

As at 

March 31, 2021 

Rs 

ll.34,57,157 

11,34,57,157 

1,20,249 

1,20,249 

U ,32,05,296 

2,51,861 

11,34,57,157 

11,35, 77,407 

l.21, 76,753 

1,45,419 

1.15.206 

1,26,37,378 

2,70,65,000 

2, 70,65,000 

16,25,906 
2,20,?42 

12,65,435 

31,12,()83 

32 U& 

33,91,646 

34,23,782 

2,56,358 

2,56,358 

10,331! 
3,332 

13,670 



for ihe Yi?ar Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31, 2022 March 3l, 20ll 

Rs Rs 
14 Rellenue from Operation, 

Income trom Business 78,37,390 58,9S,OSO 

78,37,390 58,95,050 

15 Other Income 
Interest Income 

lncomr Ta• Refund 3:.544 17,860 
lnr:ume on Planned Assets (Gralultv) 56,569 1,06,207 
Inter Corporate Deposits • .S0,000 .4,50,000 

Other Nor>-Oper,ulng ln~ome l,5S,837 2.40,000 
(Till< deducted at Source Rs. 3,U7/-, Previous y~M R, 3,WJ/ ) 
l.Jablllties no longer required wrmen back S,39,549 4.52,874-
Profit on Fixed Assets sold/scrapped 23,725 

12,29,224 12,66,941 

16 Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries and Bonus 27,41,555 28,53,505 
Contribution Ju Provident and other Funds l ,74,'l75 1,45,092 

29,16,530 29,98,597 

1? Ffnance Cost 
Bank Ch~rge,. 35,831 14,841 
Other Borrowing to,t 15,72,503 l&,67,284 
Others 689 

16,08,334 16,92,814 

18 Oe~reclation and Amortizallon 
Depredation on Property. Plant arul Equipment 3,976 1,32,451 

3,976 1,32,451 

19 O~eratin& and Admlnl~ratlve Ex~nses 
Travelling and conve yance 2, 16,935 1,60,580 
Commun1cat1on l.18.499 21,236 
Maint enance expenses 37,170 51.567 
Rent (Including lease Rent) 40,680 43,730 
ln~urant~ c:harg{!.), 90,239 %,310 
Cornputcr Cons11maoles: 4.138 
Protesslonal and Comultar.cy Charge, 1.1,69,650 3,S6,960 
legal and Sccrctcri~I 9,39 183 8,86,932 
Printing and Sl/luonery exp,,n,es .21,lH, 23.960 
Director Meeting r ,,p5 60,000 70,000 
Payment to AuiJ,tor, !Refer notl' a' btlow) 1.35000 1,35,000 
Rotes ~nd T ~•"" 15,118 25,236 
Foreign exchange FltH tuation Gair (Net? 94,200 63,825 
Bad O,bts/Sundry Salance.s wrrtten off (Net I 7. 75,S3l 118 
Misrellaneou, Expen,c~ 1,77 310 l ,3!,;;13 

38.94,71,9 20,66,267 

a P~yment to Audltors 
Statutory Auditors 

S tatutory Audit fees U0,000 l.10.000 
Tax Audit fees 25,000 25,000 

1,35,000 l ,35,000 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: l31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow generated/ (used) ln Operating Ac:tlvities 

Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for 
Depred ation and Amort1zat1on 
Interest lni:ome 

llablllties no longer required written back 

Bad Debts/ Sundry balances written off (net) 
loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets Sold / D,scarded 
Flnance Costs 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes In Working Capital , 
• (Decrease)/ Increase In Trade P~yables 
- (Decrease)/ Increase In Provisions 

• (Decrease)/increase In Other Curren t ll~blllties 
• (Decrease)/lncrease In Trade Receivables 
• Oecrease/ (lncrease) In Other Assets 

Cash generated from Operations 

DlrectTaxes Paid (Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

B. Cash flow used in lnvestin,r Activities 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used In Investing Ac:tivities 

c. Cash Flow used In Financing Activities 
Anance Costs 

Net Cash used In Financing Activities 

Net Increase / decrease In Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalent s at t he beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash Equlvall!nts at the end of the year 

• Amount Is bl!low the rounding off norm ad.opted by t/le Campany 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with Banks 

-in current accounts 

The accompanying notes are Integral part of the Cash Flow Statements. 
For G,Basu & Company 

Firm Registration Number. 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

Gautam Maitr.i 
Partner 

M embership No 054728 

Place: Kolkata 
Date 15th May 2022. 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountant, 

r; 

Rs. Rs. 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

6,43,005 2,71,862 

3,976 1,31,451_ 
(S,10,113) l!>.74,067) 
(S,39,549) (4,52,874) 
7,75,531 318 
t23, 725j 

16,08,334 16,92,814 
19,57,459 10,70,504 

84,682 (4,63,107) 
51,62.3 6,835 

(2.13,544) 20,808 
3,60,340 (8,71,140) 

- ---~(2_/_,]_8_7) ____ (:c;.3:...;,1_8:....,8_22_,_) 
22,13,373 (5,54,92.2, 

------'(-'2,:....1...;9,:....7_79..:.) _ ____ 3..c,4_3..c,4_6_7-,-
19,93,594 (2,11,455) 

70,000 
1,05,114-
1,75,114 

l ,60,622 
1,60,622 

- - --'-(t_a"".3_4,:....7_32~1 ----'--(1'--, s_o'--, s_19--=-) 

- --==-'1=8 ... ,3=4=, 7=3==21 =---':.;;1:.;,s.;.o .. ,s_19;.:.l 

3,33,976 

l,fil,89L 

4,95.867 
3,33,976 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

7,107 

4,88,160 

4,95,867 

{2,01,412) 

3,63,303 
1.61,891 

(2,01,412] 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

3.340 

1,58,55 1 

1,61,891 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

c~r·~ 
Gangotrl Guha 

'V. 'N ~ ~ }\, 
Vinay Kumar~: 

Director Whole-nme Director 

DIN•Ol666863 I... L.C'\ DIN'. 00574665 

~:aJ;tJvo;iyaYv'-
Chlef Financial Officer 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting po licies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 3 Isl March, 2022 

SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES 

Basis o f Preparation 

a) The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 (/\~-
21) - ·consolidated Financial Statements'. These financial statt!ments comprise Usha Martin Education & 
Solutions Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary Usha Martin Education Private Limited. The financial 
statements of each of these companies are prepared using uniform accounting policies in accordance with 
the generally accepted accounting principles in India. 

b) The Company has one subsidiary Company named Usha Martin l.:.ducation Private Limited which has been 
considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. 

2 The financial statements of the Company are prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost convention. 
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are detailed below: 

a) Consolidation 

Consolidated Financial Statements relate 10 Usha Martin Education & Solution~ Limitl!cl Parent Company 
and its subsidiary. The Consolidated financial Statements are in conformity with the Accounting Siandard 
(AS)-21 on Con5olidated Financial Statements. prescribed under the Companies /\cl 2013 (the · Act') and 
am prepared as set out below: 

The financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a line by line 
basis by adding together book values of lil-.e items of assets. liabilities. income and e:--penses after 
adjustments/elimination of inter-compail) balances and transactions. 

The paid up share capital of the sub:,idiary company comprises of Rs.5,500.0 I 0/- divided into 550.00 I 
equity shares of Rs I 0/- each out or which 550,000 shares are held by the parent compan) and one shares is 
held by a nominee beneficial interest of which vests in the parent company. 

The consolidated financial statements relate to Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited. Parent 
Company and iL~ subsidiary, Usha Martin Education Private Limited, which is incorporated in India. and in 
which the company owns 100% of Equity Shares. 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances in all material respect and arc presented to the extent 
possible. in the same manner as the Parent Company's separate linancial starements. 

b) Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Fixed assets comprising_ both tangible and intangible items are stated at cost 1-:ss depreciation. The Company 
capitalizes all costs relating LO acquisition or tixed assets. Cost of Software expected lo be used on long-term 
basis is capitalized. 

Depreciation (including amoruzation) on ti xed assets has been provided ou the basis of the useful life of 
assets as provided in schedule LI to the Companies Act. 20 I J (the ''Act'') 

Depreciation on additions and deletions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis. 



USIIA MARTIN EDlJCA noN & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts for the year endt>d 31st March, 2022 

c) Investments 

Long-term investments are valued at their acquisition cost. Any decline in the value of the said investment. 
other than a temporary decline. is recognized and charged to the Slalement of Profit and Loss. 

Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or fair value. 

d) Revt>nue Recognition 

Revenue from training is recognized over the period of the course program. 

e) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principle$ requires 
management ro make estimate:. and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
di!>closurc of contingent liabilities at the dale of the financial statements and the results of operations during 
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon rnanagerneot's best knowledge of current 
events and actions. acwal results could differ from these estimates. 

f) Current and Non-Current asset~ and liabilities 

An asset or liability is classified as current when it satistie~ any of the folio" ing criteria 

(i) It is e>..pected to be realized I sellle<l, or is int1.mded for sale or consumption, in the Company·s 
normal orerating cycle: 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose ufbeing traded: 

(iii) It is expected to be realized / due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or 

(iv) ll is cash or cash equivalent unless it ls restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for al lea<;t twelve months after the reporting date or 

{v) The Company doe5 not have an unconditional right to defer :;ettlernent of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date. 

g) Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencie~ at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates 
prevailing on that date. Gain/ loss arising out of exchange fluctuation on seltlcment or such restatement is 
accounted for in the Statement or Profit and Loss account, except to the extent these relntc to acquisi1ion of 
fixed assets, in which case lhei;c are adjusted ro the carrying value of the related fixed assets. 

h) Leases 

Operating Leases- Rentals are expensed with reference lo lease terms und other consideration!:>. 

I) Em ployec Benefits 

(i) Contribution to employee provident fund is charged to revenue on a month I) basi~ 

2 



lJSIIA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Notes un Acrounts for the year ended 31st March. 2022 

(ii) Liability for retiral. gratuity and un-avai led earned leave is provided for based on an independent 
actuarial valuation report as per the requirements of Accounting Standard - 15 (revised) on 
·'Employee Benefits". 

(iii) Employee benefits of short-t~rm nature are recogniLed as expense as and when it accrues. Long 
term Employee benefits (e.g. long-service leave) and post employments benefits (e.g. gratuity). 
both funded and unfunded, are recogniz:ed as expense based on actuarial valuation. 

j) Taxation 

Currem Tax in respect of taxable incom1,; of the year b provided for based on applicable tax rates and laws. 
Deferred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. on 
timing differences. being the difference between t<L"Xable income and accounting income that originate in 
one period and are capable of reversal in OTle or more subsequent periods and is measured using tax rates 
and laws that have been enacted m ~ubsrantively enacted by the Balance Sheet dace. Deferrtld tax assets / 
liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

k) Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing cost attributable to th~· acquisition and contribution of qualifying assets are added to the cost up 
to date when such assets are ready for their int<::nded ust:. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense 
in the period in which these are incurred. 

I) Contingencies 

Contingencies. which can be reasonably ascertain~d. arc provided for if, in the opinion of the Company. 
there is a probability that the furure outcome may be materially adverse to the Company. 

m) Prio r Period and Extra Ordinary llems and Cha nges in Accounting Po licies 

Prior Period and Extra Ordinary Items and Cl1anges iTI Accounting Policies having material impact on the 
financial affairs oft he Company are disclosed. 

3) Fo reign Curre ncy Earnings & Out go: 

2021-22 Rs.) 20'.!0-21 (Rs.) 

Listing Fees 

b) Earnings in foreign currenc', : 
2021-22(Rs.) 2020-21 (Rs.) 

Managcmcni Training, Educational Consultancy. 5,637.390 5,895.050 
Market Research and Delivery of modules for H & D 
Business Studies and Computing Studie:. 

3 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATJON & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Noles on Accounts f'or the year ended 31st March. 2022 

4) Related Party Disclosures Pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 

i) Related Parties 

Name Relationship 

Usha Martin Education Private Limited. Subsidiary 

Redtecb Network India Priva1e Limited. Substantial Interest in voting power of the ~ntity 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited - do -

Jhawar Venture Management Private Limited - do -

Usha Breco Limited - do -

Usha Martin Ventures Limited - do -

Rahul Chaudhary Key Managerial Per~onnel 

Debjit Bhattacharya Key Managerial Personnel 

N ipendra Kumar Sharma Key Managerial Personnel 

Vinay Kumar GupLa (Whole Time, Director) Key Manag.c::rial Personnel 

lndrajit Bandyopadhyay (Chief Financial Ofticer) Key Managerial Personnel 

RiltLparna Das (Compan) Secretary) Key Managerial Personnel (Released w.c. r. 3l/01 12022) 

4 



USHA MAR nN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significunl Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

ii) Particulars of Transactions during the ,ear ended 3 1st March. 2022 
Particulars Subsidiaries anti Key Management 

Associates Personnel 
(Rs.) (Rs.) 

Rent Paid (including lease Rent) 40,680 -
43,730 -

Key Managerial Personnel's Remuneration - 2,515,450 
. 2.587.820 

Interest Paid 1,572,503 
1.667.284 

Reimbursement or Expenses received 420,987 
257.936 

Consultancy [ncome 2,200,000 
-

Unsecured Loans: 
Taken during the year . 

Repaid during the year . 

Balances outsta nding_ ut the year end 32,434,088 . 

Investment in Equity and P reference Shares Refer Note No. 3 
to Accounts 

-do-

Remw1eration lo Key 1\1/anageria/ Per:,onnel ':s • indude re11111nt!rc1tio11 of Chief Financial Officer. Compm~r 
Secretary and Whole-Time Director 

figures are inclusive ofGST. wherever applicable and figures in normal font relate to previous year 

5) Computation of Earning Per Equity Share (Basic aod Diluted) 

(I) Basic 
(a) (i) Number of Equity Shares at the 

beginning of the year 

(ii) Number or Equity Shares at the t.'nd of the 
year 

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity 
Shares outstanding during the year 

(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share- Re. 

(b) Profit/(Loss) after tax auributable to 
Equity Shareholders- Rs. 
Net Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 

Basic Earning per Share [(b)/(a)(iii)]- Re. 

For the year cndt.'d 
3 1st March, 2022 

26,415.8 11 

26.415,811 

26.415.811 

605.005 

0.02 

For the year ended 
3 I st March,2021 

26.415.811 

26,415,811 

26.4 L5.8 l I 

251,862 

0.01 

5 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policib and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 

(11) Diluted 
(a) Diluted Potential Equity Shares 
(b) Diluted Earning per Share P(b)/ l(a)(iii)]- Re. 0.02 0.01 

6) Managerial Remuneration paid/payable 

202 1-22 2020-71 

(a) Key Managerial Personnel's Remuneration: Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Salary 830,098 853,981 
Contribution to Provident Fund 99,612 102.478 
Contribution to Gratuity and 39.928 41.076 
Supcrannuation 
Other Benefits (actual and/or estimated) 1,545,812 2,515,450 1,590.285 2.587.820 

(b) Other Directors 
Directors' Sitting Fees 60,000 70.000 

2,575,450 2,657.820 

7) The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and rnrricd forward losses available for set off under the Income- tax 
Act, 1961. However, in view of inability to assess future taxable income. the extent or net deferred tax assets 
which may be adjusted ln the subsequent years, is not ascertainable wirh virrual cenainty at this stage and 
accordingly the samt: has not been recognized in the accounts on prudent basis. 

8) The Company ha!> no amounts due 10 suppliers under lhe Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act. 2006 (MSMED) as at 31.03.202'.?.. The disclosure as required under the said Act as under: 

a) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act Nil 

b) .Interest due to suppliers a5 above Nil 

c) Any payment made to suppliers heycmd appointed date (under Nil 
Section 16 of the Act) 

d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act Nil 

e) lmeresr accrued and remainmg unpaid as at 31.03.2022 Nil 

f) Interest remaining due and payable as per Section 23 of the Act Nil 

6 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LltvtlTED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
9) Defined Benefit Plans / Long Te1TT1 Compensated Absences - as per ActuariaJ Valuations as on March 31. 2022 

and recognized in the financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes. 
(A . R mount 111 upees 

Gratuity Leave Encashment 
Funded Unfunded 

I Components Emplover Expense 
I Current Service Cost 34,870 3,776 

34,392 9,457 

2 Interest Cost (28,190) 8,179 
(26.079) 8.462 

3 Expected Relurn on Plan Assets - -
- -

4 Curtailment Cost / (Credit) - -
- -

5 Settlement Cost / (Credit) - -
- -

6 Past Service Cost - -
- -

7 Actuarial Losi.e!> / (Gain!>) - (6.455) 
- ( 11.235 

8 Total expense recognized in the Statement of Profit .. ~ Loss 6,680 5,500 
8,313 6,684 

Gra1uit)' Leave Encashmcnt 
Funded Unfunded 

11 Actuarial Returns for the period ended Mnrch, 2022 - -
m Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet as at 

March 31,2022 
I Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 408,554 (118,538) 

395,141 ( 128.218) 

2 Fair Value on Plan Assets - -
- -

3 Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] - -
- -

4 Expenses recognized in Jncome Statement 6,680 5,500 
8.3 13 6.684 

5 Expense recognized in Other Comprehcnsiw Income ( 12,490) -
(21 ,726} -

6 Employer Contribution 25,000 -
- 16.364 

7 Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet 43<).364 (124,038) 
408,554 ( I 18.538) 

7 



USHA MART11'J EDUCAT ION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Not 20 s· ·r. t A e : 12m ,can ccoun n2 po 1c1es an ti r . dN ote~ cm ccotmts or t e vear en c s arc , A t h d d 3 l t M h 2022 
JV Change in Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) during the year 

ended March 3 1, 2022 
I Present Value of DBO al the Beginning of Period 355,757 118,538 

339,242 128,2 18 

2 Cum:nt Service Cost 34.870 3,776 
34.392 9.457 

" Interest Cost 24.547 8,179 
J 

22.390 8.462 

4 Curtailment Cost I (Credit) - -
- -

5 Settlement Cost / (Credit) - -
- -

6 Plan Amendments - -
- -

7 Acquisitions - -
- -

8 Actuarial (Gains)/Losse~ ( 13,294) (6,455) 
(40.267) ( 11.235) 

Benefits Paid - -9 
16.364 -

10 Present Value of DBO a l the End of Period 401 ,880 124,038 
355.757 118.538 

Gratuity Leave Encashmenr 
V Change in Fair Value of Assets during the year ended Funded Unfunded 

March 3L, 2022 
I Plan Assets at the Beginning or Period 764.311 -

7:-14.383 -

2 Investment Income 52,737 . 
48.469 . 

3 Return on Plan Assets (804) -
(18.541) -

4 Actuarial Gains/( Losses) - -
- -

5 Ac!ual Company Contribution 25,000 -
- 16.364 

6 Benefits Paid - -
- ( 16.364) 

-7 Present Value of 080 a1 1hc End or Period 841,244 
764.311 -

8 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significan t Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 

VI Actuarial Assumotions 
I Discount Rate(%) I 7.00°,o I 7.00% 

The estimates of fuwre salary increases. cons idered in actuarial valuations take account of inflation. seniority. 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the ~rnployment market. 

Figures in normal font relate to previous year 

10) Promoters Shareholdings: 

lndlviduals 

SI. No. of fully paid up 
No. 

Name o f the Shareho lders 
equity shares held 

I Basant Kumar Jhawar 1.58.462 

2 Prashant Jhawar 1.34.220 

3 Susmita Jhawar 4,736 

4 Stuti Raghav Agarwalla 666 
s Brii Kishore Jhawar 2,97] 

6 Sltanti Devi Jhawar 35.065 

7 Anupama Jhawar 14.316 

8 Akshav Goenka 4 .878 

9 Bihari Lal Santhalia 200 
Total 3,55,516 

Indian Bodies Corporate 

SI. No. of fully paid up 
No. 

Name o f the Shareho lders 
e(Juity shares held 

Umil Share and Stock Broking 
I Services Ltd. 30,75.127 

2 Usha Breco Limited 33.77.627 
3 Prajeev Investments Limited 20.57.6 10 

4 Usha Martin Ventw·es Limited 7.51 ,5 17 

Peterhouse Investments India 
5 Limited 3.18.697 

Total 95,80,578 

Forei£ n Bodies Corporate 

St. No. of fully paid up 
No. Name of the Shareho lders 

equity shares held 

I Peterhouse lnvestmt:nts Lim ited 7.63.291 

Total 7,63,29 1 

Shareho lding as a % of 
% changes 

total no. of s hares 
during 2021-

22 
0.61 Nil 
0.52 Nil 
0.02 Nil 

- Nil 
0.01 Nil 
0.14 Nil 
0.06 Nil 
0.02 Nil 

- Nil 
1.38 

Sha reho ldinj! as a % of 
°A, changes 

total no. of s hare!> 
during 2021-

22 

11.88 Nil 
13.05 Nil 
7.95 Nil 

Increase 
2.84 2.7Q% 

Increase 
1.23 1.23% 

36.95 

Shareholding as a '¼1 of 
% changes 

total no. of shares 
during 2021 -

22 
Decrease 

2.89 3.73% 
2.89 
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USHA MARTIN fDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

I I) Age-wise Trade pavables: 

(Rs.) 

SI. Less than More Lhan 3 
No. Particulars I yea r 1-2 years 2-3 years yea rs Total 

i) MSME - - - - -
ii) Others 1,05,203 - - I 1.77.052 12,82,255 

iii) Disputed under MSME - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

Total 1,05,203 - - 11 ,77.052 12,82,255 

12) Age-wise Trade Receivables: 

(Rs.) 
Less 

SI. than 6 6 months- 1-2 2-3 More than 3 
No. Party months I year years xears years Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
i) Considered p,ood 5.80.000 - - - 6.59.670 12,39,670 

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
ii) Considered doubtful - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables -
iii) Considered good - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables -
iv) Considered doubtful - - - - - -

Total 5,80,000 - - - 6,59,670 12,39,670 

13) Financial Ratios 

Financial Ratios: 2021-22 2020-2 1 

Current Ratio 0.26 0 .25 

Debt-Equity Rauo 0.20 0.20 

Debt Serv ice Coverage Ratio 0.29 022 

Return on Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00 

Net Capital Turnover Rlltio 0.06 0 .05 

Nt:t Profit Ratio 0.06 0.03 

Return on Capital Employed o.oi 0.01 

14) Balances of Sundry Debtors. Suadry Creditors and Loans and Advances (Dr. & Cr.) are subject to 
confim1ation from the respective parries. 

15) Previous year figures have been n:gruuped / rearranged whl:revcr necessary. 

10 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & ~OUJTIONS LIMITED 

Note 20: Significant Accounting policies and Note~ on Accounts for the yea r ended 3 lst March. 2022 

16) Thi! inves11nents in Usha Martin Education Pri\atc Limited (subsidiary company). Redtech Networ~ India 
Private Limited (a.-,sociattl companyj 11ml U~ha Communication Technology Limited, British Virgin Island 
(other company) have been evaluated b)' the management and no provision for impairment is considered 
necessary in respect of these inves1ments. 

Gautam Maitra 
Partner 
Membership No. 054728 

For and on behalf of 
G. Basu & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 30 I I 74E 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 25th May 2022 

For G. BASU & CO 
Cliartered Accountanb 

R No. 30117 E \ 

✓Vf,,«)-...,~V r-
fAM MAITRA 
Partner 

, No. 054728 

Gangotri Cuha 
Director 
DlN: 01666863 

~ ~ 
yopadhya 

Chief Financial Officer 

N ~y.,r-sf;,n 

Yinay Kumar Guphl 
Director 
DIN: 00574665 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN• L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Registered Offic.e: Godrej Waterside, Unit No, 1206 12th Floor. Block DP- 5, Sector- V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata . 700 091 
Tel: T91 33 68103700 

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS 
FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

Particulars Quarter ended 

31-03,2022 31-12-2021 31-03-2021 

(Unaudited) (Unaudit ed) (Unaudited) 

Revenue from Operations 17 71 14.92 9 12 
Other Income 0.56 1 48 4 46 
Total Income 11+21 18.28 16.40 13.58 

Expenses 
(a) Purchase ofTraded Goods . 
(b) Employee Benefits Expense 6.2-9 7 02 5 96 
(c) Fmance Costs 3.96 4 05 4 92 
(d) Deprec1a11on and Amortisation Expense 0.01 0 01 0 16 
{e) Other Expenses 5 11 4.83 3 86 
{O Exceot1onal Items . . 

Total Exoenses 15.37 15.91 14.90 

Profit before tax 13-41 2.91 0.49 (1.32) 

Tax Expense 
(a) CurrP..nt Tax . -
(bl Snortt(Excess) prov1s1on or taxalion for orev,ous periods . 
/cl Deferred Tax . . 

Total Tax Exoense . 

Net Profit/lLossl for the oeriod (5-6} 2.91 0.49 11.32) 
Other Co mprehensive Income. net or Income ta~ 

(a) (I) ltema that will no1 be classified to protil or IO&s . . 
(ii) income tax relating to items lha1 WIii not be dass1hed to . . 

profit or loss 

(b) (1) Items IMt will be reclassified to pro~t or loss• . 

\I') Income tax relating to items that w,11 tle reclassified to -
prt,f;: ,r loss 

Total other comprehensive Income, net of income tax . 

Total comprehensive Income for the period (7+8) 2.91 0 .49 (1.32) 

Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face value Re 1 eachi 264 16 264 16 264. 16 

Earnings per share (or Re 1 eacn} (no1 annuaiu;edl 
(a) Basfc (m Rs ) 0 01 000 (0 00) 
(b) Diluted (1n Rs.) 0 01 0 00 (0 00) 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Year ended 

31-03-2022 31-03-2021 

(Audited) (Audl ted ) 

78 37 58.95 
7.77 817 

86.15 67.12 

. 

:,,7 35 27 86 
16 07 16 92 
004 1 32 

37 7i 19 07 

81 .23 65.17 

4.92 1.95 

-. . 
. 

4.92. 1.95 

. . 

. . 

. . 

. 

4 .92 1.95 

264.16 264.16 

0 02 001 
002 0 01 

Notes : 
1) The above Financial Rebults. alter review by 1M Audit Gornmmee, h;,ve been approved and lakP.n on record tly the Board of Directors al their 

meat1ng held on 25th May 2022 

2) This statemem has oeen prepared In accordor,ce wltn the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prt?scrfr..ed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2012 anti Uhrr recognlsact ar-,countlng prac11ces and policies to the extent applicable. 

3) The mvestments in Usha Martir, Ed1JCS'.1011 Pr,vate um11ea 1su;ig,d.ary compariy), Redtech Network India Private Limited (associate company) 
and Usha Commurncat1on Tec'lology Limited Bnosh Vtrgtn fsland (Otner Company) have. been evatua1ed by the management and 
accordingly we are of the opinion that no prov,sion 101 1mpa1rmr:n1 ts considered necessarey In respect ot these investments 



4) The company has opted to follow Cost model as tts accounting poltcy tor valuanon of property, plant and equipments hence rio adJustment 
are required for the same 

5) The Company has only one repQrtable segment He11ce nc, segment repollng Is required in accordance with IND AS 1 OB "Operating 
Segments" 

6) The Company has Unabsorbed Deprec1at101, and Business Loss available for set off under the Income Tax Act, 1961 Howevet, in view of 
Inability to assess future taxable Income m absence of any convincing evidence available to the irianagement. the extent of net deferred lax 
assets wll1ch may be adJusted tn the subsequem year 11; not ascertainable al lh1s stage and accordingly the same has not been recognised In 
the accounts on cons1dera~on of pn;oence 

7) Figures of last quarter are the balancmg figures between audited figures ct the tull ltnancial year and published ~gures up to the r11oe months 
ended 31 1:L2021 of the respective finano1a! year 

8) Statutory Auditors hjlVe provided an unmodified opinion on lhe Financial resulls 

9) Previous quarter/years ftgures have been re-grouped I re-arranged wherever necessary 

Place Kolkata 
Dated 25th May 2022 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

ry,r-..r,q,,,.,,t\ 
Vfnay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00574865 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN- L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Registered Office: Godre] Waterside, Unit No.1206, 12th Floor, Stock DP- 5, Sector- V, Sall Lake City, 
Kolkata • 700 091. Tel: +91 33 68103700 

Standalone. Statement of Assets & liabilities 
(Rs. In Lakhl 

Particulars 31-03-22 31-03-21 
Audited Audited 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 124 36 124 86 
Capital Work-in-Progress . . 
lnvestmf!llt Property . . 
Goodwtll . . 
Other Intangible Assets . . 
Intangible as:.ets under development . . 
Biolog1cal assets other than bearer plants . . 
Investments accounted tor usInQ equiiy method . . 

124.36 124.86 
Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-Current Investments 1,605.00 1,605.00 
Trade receivables, non-current . . 
Other non-<:urrent financial assets 8 4, 7 64 
Total Non.Current Financial Assets 1,613.41 1,612.64 

Deferre.d Tax ass~s (net) . 
Other non-<:Urrant assets . 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,737.77 1,737.50 
Current Assets 

lnventones . 
Current Financial assets 
C\Jrrenl Investments . 
Trade receivables current 12.40 1600 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 56 1 45 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - . 
Loans. current . . 
Other c,ment financial assets 81 64 87 89 

Total Current financial assets 98.60 105.34 
Current tax assets (net) . 
Other current assets . . 

Total Current assets 98.60 105.34 
Non-current assets classified as held tor ~ale . -
Regulatory deferr,il account debit balances and related de.ferred tax assets . 
Total Assets 1,836.37 1,842.85 

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 264 16 284 16 
Other Eqwty 1,088 91 1,084 00 

Total Equity 1,353.07 1,348.16 

Liabilities 
!\Ion-Current Ullbllllles 
Non-Current Financial Liabilities 

Flnancial LlabIltbes 
Borrowings . -

Trade payables . . 

Other Non-Current financial L,ab,hhes . . 
Total non-Current Flnanclal Llabilllies . 
Provisions, noo-current 126.87 126 37 
□ererred tax llabilmes (net) -
Deferred Government grants, non current . . 

Other non.current liabllities . . 

Total non-Current Liabilities 126.87 126.37 
Current Uabllltles 
Current financial liabilities 

Borrow,ngs, current 270 65 27065 
Trade Payables, current 25.40 29 35 
Other current financial l1ab1libes 59.81 65.63 

Total current financial llablllties 355.86 365.63 
Other current llaollltles 0-41 2.55 
Prov1s1ons. current 015 0.14 
Current tax llabllities . 
Deferred Government grants, current . 

Tot al current llabllllles 356.42 368.32 

ltablfllY directly aSSOC1ated with assets In disposal group classified all held for i.ale . . 
Regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deterred tax liability . 
Total Liabilities 483 30 494.69 
Total Eaultv and Llabllities 1,836.37 1,842.85 

Previous years' figures have been re-grouped I re.arranged wherever necessary 
For Usha Martin Educ.ition & Solutions Limited 

Place Kolka1a 
Dal ed 25th May 2022 

~· ";,/ .-'<...., ..... 
Vlnay Kumar~upta 

Whole-lime Director 
DIN: 00574665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for t he year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow generated / (used) ln Operating Activit ies 

Profit /(Loss) before tax 

Adjustment for: 

Depreciation and Amortiz.ation 

Interest Income 

Liabilities no longer required wntten back 

Bad Debts/ Sundry balances written off (net) 

Loss/ (Gafn) on Tangible Assets Said/ Discarded 

Finance Costs 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes In Working Capital : 

- (Decrease)/ Increase In Trade Payables 

- (Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions 

- (Decrease)/lncrease in Other Financial Liabilities 

-(Decrease)/lncrease In Other Current Liabilities 

- (Decrease)/lncrease in Trade Receivables 

- Decrease/llncrease) in Other Assets 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activit ies 

B. Cash Flow used In Investing Activities 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Interest Received 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow used in Financing Activities 

Rnance Costs 

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 

Net increase /decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalent5 at the beginning otthe year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

" Amount 1s below the rounding off norm adopted by the Companv 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

Previous years' figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary 

Place; Kolkata 

Date : 25th May 2022 

(Rs. In Lakh} 

Vear Ended 

March 31, 2022 

4.91 

0.04 

(0.58) 

(5.40) 

7.25 
(0.24) 
16.07 

22.05 

1.45 

0.52 
(3.56) 

(2.14) 

3.60 

0.04 

21.9 6 

(1.80) 
20.16 

0.70 

0.58 

1.28 

(18.33) 

(18.33) 

3.11 

1.45 

4.56 

3.11 

Asat 

M arch 31, 2022 
0.05 

4.51 

4.56 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Vear Ended 

M arch 31, 2021 

1.95 

1.32 

(1.24} 
(4.53) 

16.92 

14.42 

(4.64) 

0.07 
{4.16) 
0.21 

(8.71) 

(2.68) 

(5.49) 

3.77 

(1.72) 

1.24 

1.24 

(1.49) 
(1.49) 

(1.97) 

3.42 

1.45 
(1.97) 

As at 

M arch 31, 2021 
0.02 

1.42 

1.45 

"-J~""-J ,.(J~ k 

Vlnay Kumar Gupta 

Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 00574665 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN- L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Registered Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 1206, 12th Floor, Block DP- 5, Sector- V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 091 
Tel: •91 33 68103700 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS 
FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

(Rs. In Lakh) 
Particulars Quarter ended Year ended 

31--03-2022 31-12-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

Revenue from Opera11ons 16 71 14.92 912 78 37 58 95 
Other Income 1 67 2 61 5 57 12 29 12.67 
Total Income (1+2) 18.38 17.53 14.69 90.66 71 .62 

Expensei. 
' (a) Purchase of Traded Goods - . - -

(b) Employee Benefits Expense 6 74 7 47 6.37 29.16 2999 
(c) Finance Costs 396 4 OS 4 92 16 08 1693 
(d) Depreciation end Amortisation E)(J)Bnse 0 01 0.01 016 0 04 1 32 
(e) Other Expenses 4 48 5 31 4.33 36.94 20.66 
/0 Exceotional Items . . -

Total Exoenses 15.19 16.84 15.78 84.22 68.90 

Profit before tax (3-4) 3.19 0.69 (1 .09) 6.44 2.72 

Tax Expense 
(a) Current Tax 007 0.05 008 0.38 020 
(b) Short/(Excess) provision of taxation for prev,ous periods . . 
/cl Deferred Tax - . 

Total Tax Expense 0.07 0.05 0.06 0.38 0.20 

Net ProfiU{Loss) for the period 15-6) 3.12 0.64 (1.15) 6.06 2.52 
Other Comprehensive Income, net of Income tax 

(a) (i) Items that will not be classified to profit or loss . - . 
(11) income tax relating to rtems that WIii nor be class11ted to . . . 

profit or loss 

(b) (I) items that Will be reclassified to profit or loss - - . . . 
(II) Income ta~ relating to items that will t>e reclaSSthed to . - - - -

profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive income, net of Income tall . - - . 

Total comprehensive Income for the period (7♦8) 3 12 0.64 (1 15) 606 2 52 

Paid-u-p EQuJly Share Capital (Face value Re 1 eacn) 264 16 264 16 264 16 264 16 264 16 

Eam,ngs per share (of Re. 1 eaeh) (not annualised) 
(a) Basic (in Rs.) 0 01 000 (0.00) 0 02 0 01 
(b) DIiuted (In Rs l 0 01 0 00 (000) 0 02 0 01 

Notes 
1) The above Flnandal Rei.ults, after review by the Audit Commrttee, have been approved and taken on record by the Board ot Directors al 

the,r meeting held on 25th May 2022 

2) The above con!iohdated financial results have been compiled by following the pnnciples set out m the Accounting Standard 21 
"Consolidated Financial S tatements" 

3) This statement has been prepared In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accou-ntmg Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescnbed 
under Section 133 or the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and pohc,es to the extent applicable. 

4) The investments In Usha Martin Education Private Limited (subs1d1ary company), Redtech Network India Pnvate L1m1ted (assoc,ate 
company) and Usha Communication TecnolOgy Limited, Brttlsh Virgin Island (Other Company) have been evaluated by the mana_gement 
and accordingly we are or the opinion that no provision for 1mpa1rment 1s cons,dered necessarey in respect or these investments. 



5) The company has opted to follow Cost model as its accounting policy for valuation of property, plan\ and equipments hence no adjustment 
are required tor the same 

6) The Company has only one reportal>le segment Hence no segment repoting Is required m accordance with IND AS 108 "Operating 
Segments" 

7) The Company has Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Loss available for set off under the Income Tax Aci, 1961 However, In view of 
,nablr.ty to assess future taxable Income In absence of any convincmg evidence available to the managemen1. the extent of net deferred tax 
assets which may be adjusted In the subsequent year Is not ascertamable at th,s stage and accordmgly the same has not been recogn1Sed 
in the accounts on cons1deralion of prudence. 

8) Figures of last quarter are the balancmg figures between audited figures of the full financial year and published figures up to the nine 
months ended 31.12.2021 of the respective financial year 

9) Statutory Auditors have provided an unmodlfie(! opinion on the Financial results 

1 0) Previous quarter/years figures have been re-grouped I re-arranged wherever necessary. 

Place Kolkata 
Dated : 25th May 2022 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

rv •'K.f I ~ -4y tJ 

Vlnay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00574665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN- L31300W81997PLC085210 

Regl&ter&d Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 1208, 12th Floor, B1<><:k DP- 5, Sector-V, Sall Lake City, Kolkata 
• 700 091 Toi: +91 33 68103700 

Consolidated Statement of Assets & Llabllltles 
(Rs, In Lakhl 

Particulars 31-03-22 31-03-21 
Audited Audited 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Atiseta 

Property, Pierri and Equrpmem 124.36 124.86 
Capital Work-1n-Progre11s 
lnvestmerrt Property 
Goodwlll 
Other Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets under development 
81olog1cal assels clher than bearer plants 
Investments accounted for using equity melhoo 

124.36 124.66 
Non-Currunt Financial Assets 

Non-Current Investments 1,550 00 1,550 00 
Trade receivables, non-current 
Other non-current financial assets 8 41 7.64 
Total Non-Current Financial Assets 1,558.41 1,667,64 

Deterred Tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets . 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,682.77 1,682.50 
Current Assets 

Inventories 
Current Financial assets 
Current Investments . 
Trade receivables current 12 40 16 00 
Cash and Cash Equlo;alenls 4 96 \ 62 
Bank balance other ihan casn and cash equivalent$ . . 
Loans, C1Jrren1 5000 SO 00 
Olller current ffnanctal assets 112 50 114 89 

Total Current financial assets 179.86 182,51 
Current lax assets (net) 
01her current assets -
Tot.a.I Current assets 179.86 182.51 
Non-current assets classified as held tor sale: 

Regulatory deferral account debrt balances and related deferred lax assets 
Total AssetS 1,862,63 1,865.01 

EQUITY ANO LIA.BJLITIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 264 16 264 16 
Other Equity 1,141.82 1,135 n 

Total Equity 1,405.98 1,399.93 

Liabllltl&a 
Non-Currem LJab1lllles 
Non-Current Financial Uabllilles 

Financial Liabillt.ies 
Borrowings 

Trade payable/I 
Other Non-Current finan(:jal Liabilities . 

Total non-Current Finaaclal Llabllltles 
Provisions, non-current 126.87 12637 
Oererred tax liabilrt,es (net) . 
Deferred Government grants non current . 
Other non-current l,abilibes . 
Total non-Current Llablllt!es 126.87 126.37 

Current LlablllUos 
Current financial llabillUes 

Borrowings, current 270 65 :<'7065 
Trade Payables, current 26 57 31 12 
Other amen\ financial hab11111es 31.97 34 24 

Total current nnanclal liabJllties 329,19 336 01 
01her current 11ab111ues 042 2 56 
Provisions, current 
CUITent tax liabilities 

0 15 014 

Deferred Government grants, current . 
Tollll current liabllltlas 329,77 338.71 
l labillly directly essoelated with assets in disposal group classified as held 
for sale -

Regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax tlabihty . . 
Total Liabilities d56.65 -465 08 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,862.63 1 865.01 

' PrevtOUs yearo, l[gures have been re-grouped , re-airanged Wherever necessary 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutlo~s lmd 

""' "N • ;.n. 
Vlnay Kumar upla 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 0057 4665 
Place Kolkat~ 
Dated 25th May 2<lZ! 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CtN:L31300WB1997PLC08S210 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow generated/ (used) In Operating Activities 

Profit /(loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 

Depreciation and Amortizat ion 

Interest Income 

liabilit ies no longer required written back 

Bad Debts/ Sundry balances written off (net) 

Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets Sold/ Discarded 

Gain on flnanclal asset designated at fair value 

Finance Costs 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjust ment for changes in Working Capital : 

- (Decrease)/ Increase in 1 rade Payables 

- (Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions 

- (Decrease)/lncre.ase In Other Current Liabilities 
- (Decrease)/lncrease in Trade Rece,vables 

• Decrease/( lncrease) In Other Assets 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

B. Cash Flow used In Investing Activities 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used In Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow used In Financing Activities 
Finance Costs 

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 

Net Increase /decrease In Cash and Cash equivalents 

cash and Cash Equivalents at the beg1nn1ng of the year 

cash and Cash Equivalents -at the end of the year 

• Amount Is below the rounding off norm adopted by rhe Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

Previous years' figures have been re-grouped/ re--ammged wherever necessary 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 25th May 2022 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Yea, ended 
March 31, 2022 

6.43 

0.04 
(5.10) 
(5.40) 
7,76 

(0.24) 

16.08 
19.57 

0.86 

0.52 
(2.14) 
3.60 

(0.27) 
22.13 

(2.20) 
19.9S 

0.70 

1.05 
1 .75 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2021 

2.72 

L32 
(5.74) 

(4.53) 
0 .00 

16.93 
10.71 

(4.63) 
0.07 

0.21 
(8.71) 
(3.19) 
(5.55) 

3.43 
{2.11) 

1.61 
1.61 

_ ____ (,.._1_8._35 ...... ) ------'-(1_.5_1..:..) 
(18.35) (1.51) 

=== ==="'==aaa 

3.34 

1.62 

4.96 
3.34 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0.08 

4.88 

4.96 

(2.01) 

3.63 

1.62 
(2.01) 

As at 

March 31, 2021 

0.03 

1.59 

1.62 

N-~ ,G"yti 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 

Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 00574665 



FORM A 

Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

Godrej Waterside, Tower-2, 12th Floor 
Office No.: 1206 Block-DP. Sector-V 
Sall Lake City, Kolkata 700091 India 

Tel · +91 33 6810 3700 
Website www.umesl.co.in 

CIN -L31300WB1997PLC085210 

(for audit report with unmodified opinion as per Regulation 33(4) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015) 

1. Name of the Company 

2. Annual Financial Statement 
for the Period ended 

3 Type of Audit Observation 

4. Frequency of Observation 

Whole-Time-Director 

CFO 

Auditor 

Audit Committee Chairman 

M/s Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

31 s1 March, 2022 

Un-qualified 

NA 




